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(2) has been subject to such filing requirementste past 90 days. Ye&l No O
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Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent toigtalilition of securities under a plan confirmedabgourt. YesO No O
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March 2, 2009, there were 23,800,064 shares o€oammon Stock issued and outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
List hereunder the following documents if incorperhby reference and the Part of the Form 10-K,(Bart I, Part 11, etc.) into which
the document is incorporated: (1) Any annual refibsecurity holders; (2) Any proxy or informatistatement; and (3) Any prospectus filed
pursuant to Rule 424(b) or (c) under the Securiietsof 1933. The listed documents should be tfedescribed for identification purposes
(e.g., annual report to security holders for fisgsdr ended December 24, 1980).

None except exhibits.




Table of Contents

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
FORM 10-K
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2008

TABLE OF CONTE NTS

PART |
Item 1. Busines
Item 1A. Risk Factor
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commer
Item 2. Propertie
Item 3. Legal Proceeding
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securtiders

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, asddr Purchases of Equity Securi

Item 6. Selected Financial De

Item 7. Manageme’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatic
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsoiit Market Risk

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotisitam Accounting and Financial Disclost
Item 9A. Controls and Procedur

Item 9B. Other Informatiol

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@overnanc

Item 11. Executive Compensati

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficialii@rs and Management and Related Stockholder Mi
Item 13. Certain Relationships And Related Transast and Director Independen

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Serv

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Sched
SIGNATURES

12

13
14

14
16
17

F-1
25
25
25

26

41
44
45

45
48



Table of Contents
PART |

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fordvknoking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forwardiooking statements involve known and unknown riskagcertainties, and other factors that may causeastual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amotgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our mainnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation (as it affects our toas well as market access and the viability ofgatents), our ability to maintain favora
supplier arrangements and relationships, our readipoyalties from Baiyin Tonsun Medical Device Catd. (“‘BTMD”), the impact ¢
dramatic increases in demand, our ability to quickicrease capacity, our ability to access the etar@ur ability to maintain or low
production costs, our ability to continue to finamesearch and development as well as operatiahgxpansion of production, the incree
interest of larger market players, specifically ®ecDickinson and Company (“BD”)n providing devices to the safety market, and «
factors referenced item 1A. Risk Factors. Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shootidbe placed on forward-looking statements.

Iltem 1. Business.
DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

General Description

On May 9, 1994, our company was incorporated inabeto design, develop, manufacture, and marketvative patented safe
medical products for the healthcare industry.

Our VanishPoin® safety needle products (consistinfcc tuberculin, insulin, and allergy antigenni&nPoint® syringes; 0.5cc, 3¢
5cc, and 10cc VanishPoifit  syringes; the VanishPdiblood collection tube holder; autodisable syeirand the VanishPoirit IV safety
catheter) utilize a unique friction ring mechanigatented by Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, Presideuat, Chief Executive Office
VanishPoin® safety needle products are designed specificalprégent needlestick injuries and to prevent retdee friction ring mechanis
permits the automated retraction of the syringedlgemto the barrel of the syringe, directly frolretpatient, after delivery of the medicatio
completed. The VanishPoifitblood collection tube holder utilizes the same na@i$m to retract the needle after blood has beawrdfron
the patient. Closure of an attached end cap oblbed collection tube holder causes the needleetiact directly from the patient into
closed blood collection tube holder. The IV cathetlso operates with a friction ring mechanism nghg the needle is retracted after insel
of the catheter into the patient. We also havateRt Safe™ syringe which reduces the risk ofdtiéa resulting from IV line contamination.

Advantages of our VanishPoifitsafety needle products include protection from etk injuries, prevention of cross contamina
through reuse, and reduction of disposal and a@tbsociated costs. Federal regulation now reqthieease of safe needle devices.

We and Thomas J. Shaw entered into a Technologgnke Agreement dated effective as of the 23rd dajume 1995, wherel
Mr. Shaw granted us a worldwide exclusive licersentinufacture, market, sell, and distribute ‘Lieh$roducts’ and ‘Improvementshtil
the expiration of the last ‘Licensed Patents’ uslssoner terminated under certain conditions withigint to sublicense. ‘Licensed Produgcts’
‘Improvements’, and ‘Licensed Patense all terms that are extensively defined in thelihology License Agreement. In exchange, we §
$500,000 initial licensing fee and a five perceaytalty on gross sales after returns of ‘LicensentiBets’. Mr. Shaw entered into an agreen
whereby Ms. Suzanne August, his former spousetisesl to $100,000 per quarter payable out of mnyglties.
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See “ _Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Propritigihts” for a more detailed discussion. We and Thoma$hdwSentered into the Fi
Amendment to Technology Agreement July 3, 2008, relme we amended the Technology License Agreememtrder to include certa
additional patent applications (addressing nonagygipatents) owned by Mr. Shaw in the definitior‘®étent Propertiesas set forth in tt
Technology License Agreement so that such additipai@nt applications would be covered by the keegranted by Mr. Shaw to us.

Our goal is to become a leading provider of safietglical products.

Our products have been and continue to be distiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestengaged in by BD which dominates our market. iMfiated a lawsuit in 2007 agail
BD. The suit is for patent infringement, antitrpsactices, and false advertising.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techggldntroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusimgnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabdityg efficiency in order to enable u:
offer our technology at a reduced price. We belieur current capitalization provides the resourszsessary to implement these change:
improve our manufacturing capacity and efficierttygreby reducing our unit cost.

We are developing new safety medical products, sofwehich do not utilize our patented retractionheology. The Patient Safe
syringe is one such product. This product redtivesisk of infection resulting from IV line contamation.

Financial Information

Please see the financial statementftém 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Datdor information about our revenu
profits, and losses for the last three years, atad &ssets for the last two years.

Principal Products

Our products with Notice of Substantial Equivaletzé¢he U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA&ihd which are currently sc
include the 1cc tuberculin; insulin; allergy antigéanishPoin® syringes; 0.5cc, 3cc, 5cc, and MaaishPoint®  syringes; the VanishPadnt
blood collection tube holder; the VanishPdintV safety catheter; and a small diameter tube aapiVe are also selling autodisable syril
in the international market. We also received didéoof Substantial Equivalence for our Patiente®afsyringe, which reduces the risk
infection resulting from IV line contamination.

We began marketing the Patient Safe™ syringe ir8200

In the September 2003 issueHtdalth Devices, ECRI listed three syringes with the highest dalssiating: our VanishPoirft syringe
New Medical Technoloc¢'s (“NMT") safety syringe, and BD’s Integra™ syriag In the August 2007 issue ldéalth Devices, ECRI listed twi
syringes with the highest possible rating: our \gaRioint® syringe and BD’s Integra™ syringe.

Syringe sales comprised 98.8%, 98.0%, and 98.6féwehues in 2006, 2007, and 2008.

Principal Markets

Our products are sold to and used by healthcarédas primarily in the United States (with 16.7%revenues in 2008 genera
from sales outside the United States) which inclidde are not limited to, acute care hospitalgratite care facilities, doctorsffices, clinics
emergency centers, surgical centers, convalesapitals, Veterans Administration facilities, ndliy organizations, public health faciliti
and prisons.
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The syringe and needle device market continueseta Imarket in transition. The nature of the préslwomprising the market
slowly changing from standard to safety devices. The fogp#or the change to safety devices is the risit ith carried with each needles
injury which includes the transmission of over 206dadborne pathogens, including the human immunocisgfcy virus (“HIV,” which cause
AIDS), hepatitis B, and hepatitis C. Because @f dlecupational and public health hazards posedhyantional disposable syringes, pu
health policy makers, domestic organizations andegument agencies have been involved in the eftodet more effective safety nee
products to healthcare workers. Federal legisiatvas signed into law on November 6, 2000, by forRresident William Jefferson Clinto
This legislation, which became effective for madsitess on April 12, 2001, now requires safety ne@dbelucts be used for the vast majorit
procedures. However, even with this requirememmyrhospitals are neglecting to follow the law imtted to protect healthcare workers.

Methods of Marketing and Distribution

Under the current supply chain system in the UcBteacare market, the vast majority of decisiotatireg to the contracting for a
purchasing of medical supplies are made by theesgmtatives of group purchasing organizations (“€P@ther than the endsers of th
product (nurses, doctors, and testing personidie GPOs and manufacturers often enter into tengrexclusive contracts which can prof
entry in the marketplace by competitors.

We distribute our products throughout the U.S. #adterritories through general line and specialigtributors. We also utili:
international distributors. We have developed @onal direct marketing network in order to market products to health care customers
their purchaser representatives. Our marketersernalls on target markets that are users of themdupts. Our marketers make contact
all of the departments that affect the decisioaking process for safety products, including thecpasing agents. They call acute care
alternate care sites and speak directly with thasa®-makers of these facilities. We employ trainediclans, including registered nur:
and/or medical technologists that educate heakhpesviders and healthcare workers on the usefefysdevices through exhibits at rels
tradeshows and publications of relevant articlesaéde journals and magazines. These nurses gralidcal support to customers. In addi
to marketing our products, the network demonstritessafety and cost effectiveness of the VanisitPoiautomated retraction products
customers.

In the needle and syringe market, the market sleader, BD, has utilized, among other things, Iterga exclusive contracts whi
have restricted our entry into the market.

We have numerous agreements with organizationghtrdistribution of our products in foreign marketSales to these mark
decreased from 18.4% to 16.7% of revenues duewerlovolumes and lower average prices in 2007 ar@B_2@espectively. The to
population of Western Europe exceeds 310 milliowd the recognition for the urgency of safe needieiaks in parts of Europe has follov
the United States model. In France, England, Geymand Italy, organized healthcare worker unioagehtaken action to force hospitals
government agencies to place safety as a prioiRggions within Asia, South America, and Africa @leo recognizing the need for
products. Beginning in 2004, we were given an a@w@om PATH) to supply syringes to various Africapuntries under the President’
Emergency Plan for AIDS relief (PEPFAR). Awarderiased significantly from 2004 to 2007. The cwmdtion of PEPFAR has be
reauthorized by Congress through 2013. Howevedifig for the procurement of safety syringes is ffiogram is uncertain.

As a result of the introduction of VanishPofhtsyringes through the PEPFAR initiative, African nties have begun to proci
products outside of the US-funded program. In 200& Director General of NigereNational Agency for Food and Drug Administrateom
Control (NAFDAC), endorsed automated retractionirgges for use throughout Nigeria. We are currestyling syringes to a Nigeri
distributor for use in that country. At the end2ff08, the Deputy Prime Minister of Namibia alsdlpally endorsed automated retrac
syringes as a public intervention that would “pobtieealth workers and save their patient’s lives”.

Key components of our strategy to increase our ataskare are to: (a) defeat monopolistic practihesugh litigation; (b) focus ¢
methods of upgrading our manufacturing capabilitgl afficiency in order to enable us to reduce castsimprove profit margins; (c) contir
marketing emphasis in the U.S.; (d) continue to ¥dterans Administration facilities, health depagtits, emergency medical services, fec
prisons, longerm care and home healthcare facilities as cusgnie) educate healthcare providers, insurerdthueae workers, governme
agencies, government officials, and the generalipuam the reduction of risk and the cost effeatigess afforded by our products; (f) sug
product through GPOs and Integrated Delivery Nekkwornhere possible; (g) consider possibilities fatufe licensing agreements and |
venture agreements for the manufacture and disioibof safety products in the
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United States and abroad; (h) introduce new praglactd (i) increase international sales.

Status of Publicly Announced New Products

We have patented and are in the process of dewglaaiditional safety medical products. We are pecoty catheters with a wi
range of needle sizes and have an increased nwhbizes available for the Patient Safe™ syringe.

Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We purchase most of our product components fromleiauppliers, including needle adhesives and gacgamaterials. There
multiple sources of these materials. We own thédmthat are used to manufacture the plastic coepsnof our products in the U.S.
suppliers include Magor Mold, Inc., Helix Medicdbfmerly APEC), Channel Prime Alliance, Exacto 8pgriCorporation, Sterigenics,
ISPG. Some suppliers increased their prices giyelze to the higher costs of petroleum product2008.

M o~ M

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses, and Proprietarytfigh

We and Thomas J. Shaw entered into a Technologgnk& Agreement dated effective as of the 23rd dayune, 1995 (tt
“Technology License Agreement”), whereby Mr. Shaarged us “... a worldwide exclusive license and trighder the ‘Licensed Patentc
‘Information’, to manufacture, market, sell andtdiute ‘Licensed Products’ and ‘Improvementgthout right to sublicense and subjec
such nonexclusive rights as may be possessed bifdatieral Government...”. ‘Licensed Patents’, ‘Infation’, ‘Licensed Productsanc
‘Improvements’ are all defined extensively in the Technology LeenAgreement. We may enter into sublicensing gemrents wit
Mr. Shaw’s written approval of the terms and coodi of the licensing agreement. The ‘LicenseddBets’ include all retractable syring
and retractable fluid sampling devices and comptntirereof, assembled or unassembled, which coenprisnvention described ihitensel
Patents’, and improvements thereto including arny @h‘Products’ which employ the inventive conceligclosed or claimed in thé&itenses
Patents’. We and Thomas J. Shaw entered into the First Amentrto Technology Agreement July 3, 2008, whereley amnended tt
Technology License Agreement in order to includeate additional patent applications (addressing-syringe patents) owned by Mr. Shav
the definition of “Patent Propertiesls set forth in the Technology License Agreementhst such additional patent applications woul
covered by the license granted by Mr. Shaw to us.

In exchange for the Technology License Agreemeetnagotiated a licensing fee and agreed to payeapiercent royalty on grc
sales after returns. The license terminates ugpimaion of the last licensed patents unless sotareninated under certain circumstances.
licensing fees have been paid in accordance withatreement with the exception of $1,500,000 é&s fehich were waived by Mr. Shaw
his former wife.

We have the right and obligation to obtain protattof the invention, including prosecution of patgmoperties. The licen
unilaterally changes to a nonexclusive licensehdvent of a hostile takeover. Also, if Mr. Shiawoluntarily loses control of the Compa
the license becomes a nonexclusive license arghatd information.

We seek foreign patent protection through the Rammoperation Treaty and have filed applicationsrémgional and national pat:
protection in selective countries where we believeproducts can be utilized most.

We hold numerous U.S. patents related to our autmnaetraction technology, including patents fordafety catheters, winged
sets, syringes, dental syringes, and blood cofiedtibe holders. In addition, we have multiplelaagions for patents currently pending. -
principal syringe patent in the U.S., as well asfdreign counterpart, will expire in May 2015. Wave also registered the following tr
names and trademarks: VanishPoint, VanishPointslogd with a circle mark, the Spiral Logo
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used in packaging our products, and the color capeds on the ends of our syringes. We also hadetark protection for the phraseht
New Standard for Safe” We have applied for a trademark for the Patiafte syringe and Port Prep.

We have a patent infringement claim pending ag@isinvolving four patents, a case involving twaqrets against Occupational
Medical Innovations Limited (“OMI”), and a case olving two patents against Safety Medical Interoraal (“SMI”). There are also two patt
infringement claims pending against us. Thesendaire detailed ittem 3. Legal Proceedings We have decided, on the advice of pe
counsel, not to purchase patent insurance becawseuid require inappropriate disclosure of infotioa that is currently proprietary a
confidential.

We currently obtain roughly 74.0% of our finishewgucts through Double Dove, a Chinese manufactuiée believe we could ma
up any longterm disruption in these supplies by utilizing mofethe capacity at the Little Elm facility, excefotr 0.5cc, autodisable, 5cc ¢
10cc syringes which comprised about 4.6% of oud82@venues.

We had a Licensing Agreement with BTMD which exdien May 13, 2008. Royalties that were expecte2Did8 and 2007 were
received due to the time needed to build the facssembly equipment, and the related infrastracs well as the need of BTMD to meet
requisite Chinese government requirements. Thiitfabas been completed and BTMD is in the procetsneeting Chinese governm
requirements. We still continue to expect royglyments although we are unable to predict the watevill begin to receive such royaltie
Royalties should begin once we have an effectiveaagent, Chinese government requirements are meBaMD is able to produce and
products.

Seasonal Effect on Business

We have generally experienced higher syringe shlésg the last half of the year which we belieselie to flu season.

Working Capital Practices

Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted araglinvestments with original maturities of threenths or less.

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custom@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that arétflduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistaddl based on a percentage of receivables outstan@hese provisions are reviewet
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulstfgounts. Trade receivables are charged off where is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgleent when payment has not been made withinraonterms.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regriwith cost being determined using a standard m@shod, which approximal
average cost. A reserve is established for angssxor obsolete inventories.

Receivables are established for federal and statestwhere we have determined we are entitled refuand for overpayments
estimated taxes or loss carry backs.

Accounts payable and other shtetm liabilities include amounts that we believe ave an obligation for at the end of year. T
included charges for goods or services received0i®8 but not billed to us at the end of the yeldralso included estimates of poten
liabilities such as rebates and other fees.

Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement, a copy of which watsetted as exhibit no. 6.3 to «
Form 10-SB filed on June 23, 2000. This policyvides that a
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customer may return incorrect shipments within &9 sdfollowing arrival at the distributa’facility. In all such cases the distributor n
obtain an authorization code from us and affix ¢bde to the returned product. We will not acceptinned goods without a returned gc
authorization number. We may refund the custontradsey or replace the product.

Our international contracts do not provide for agtyrns.

Our return policy also provides that a customer medyrn product that is overstocked. Overstocketgrns are limited to two times
each 12 month period up to one percent of distibsitotal purchase of products for the prior 12 mgrehod upon the following terms: i)
“overstocked” product is that portion of distribtitoinventory of the product which exceeds disttdsis sales volume for the product dui
the preceding four months; ii) distributor must have taken delivery of the product which is overked during the preceding four months
overstocked product held by distributor in excefsl® months from the date of original invoice wilbt be eligible for return; iv) tt
overstocked product must be returned to us in al@éable case cartons which are unopened and untadhpéath no broken or reaped seals; "
distributor will be granted a credit which may tsed only to purchase other products from us, taditto be in the amount of the invoice p
of the returned products less a 10% restockingMeieh will be assessed against distribiaasubsequent purchase of product; vi) distrik
must obtain an authorization code from our distidoudepartment and affix the code to the retunpexiuct; and vii) distributor shall bear
cost of shipping the returned products to us. pAtiduct overstocks and returns are subject to cispeand acceptance by manufacturer.

Dependence on Major Customers

One distributor, McKesson and its affiliates, acuted for an aggregate of 16.8% of our revenue 820WNe have numerous ot
distributors that sell our products in the U.S. amtdrnationally.

Backlog Orders

Order backlog is not material to our business inasmas orders for our products generally are receand filled on a current ba:
except for items temporarily out of stock.

Government Funding of Research and Right to License

Thomas J. Shaw developed his initial version oifety syringe with the aid of grants by the Natiohmestitute of Drug Abuse,
subsidiary of the National Institutes of Healths Aresult, the federal government has the righgre/the public interest justifies it, to dispt
the technology to multiple manufacturers so thé &arly version of a safety syringe could be maitkely available to the public. Howev
the earlier design of 1991 was a bulkier, lessctiffe, and more expensive version of the currenhisfePoint® product. Accordingly
Management believes that the risk of the governmdenanding manufacture of this alternative prodsiotinimal. The VanishPoirft syringe
design was only partly funded with grant money #mel product, as sold, incorporates technology fbictv the government has no rigr
Therefore the government has no right to allow ksthe manufacture the VanishPofnt

Competitive Conditions

We believe our competitive advantages include beinat limited to our leadership in quality andormation. We believe our produ
continue to be the most effective safety device®dtay’s market. Our syringe products include passivetgafctivation, require less dispc
space, and are activated while in the patient. [@ize per unit is competitive or even lower thae tompetition once all the costs incu
during the life cycle of a syringe are consider@dch life cycle costs include disposal costs, igséind treatment costs for needlestick inju
and treatment for contracted illnesses throughlesgdk injuries.
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We have three major competitors: BD, Covidien Iifdrmerly known as Tyco Healthcare which was spfirfirom Tyco Internationa
(“Covidien”), and Terumo Medical Corp. (“Terumo”).

Founded in 1897, BD is headquartered in New JerB&y's safety-engineered product sales accountedgdproximately 22% of BI¥’
total 2008 sales. BD currently manufactures thfetghok™, a syringe that utilizes a tubular plagtieath that must be manually slid ovel
needle after an injection, and the SafetyGlide™Meadle which utilizes a hinged lever to cover teedie tip. BD also manufactures a se
blood collection and hypodermic needle that utflitiee Eclipse™ needle cover. BD also manufactargdsc and 1cc retracting needle pro
based on a license agreement with Specialized H&atiducts International, Inc. (formerly the MBdsign Corporation). The Integra™
retractable syringe offered by BD, does not offdull product line and cannot be used with highlgcous medication due to leakage
described on their labels). The introduction a6 thyringe has had little impact on our sales @au8D’s historic market dominance. BD’
“Vacutainer® " blood collection products are commonsed as industry jargon to refer to blood coiecproducts in general.

Sherwood Medical Co. (“Sherwoodi)as acquired by Tyco International. Sherwood is pant of Covidien. Covidien manufactu
various safety syringes and needles.

Founded in 1974, Terumo was the first company Hodégposable syringes in Japan. Today, Terumoufatures standard syring
blood collection tube holders, safety syringes, blodd collection devices. It operates internaglgnand has sales in more than 150 countries.

Both BD’s SafetyLok™ and Covidien’s Monojettsafety syringes require the use of two hands anerakextra steps to activate
tubular plastic shield which must be slid and latketo place to protect the needle. These producist be removed from the patient in o
for the safety mechanism to be activated. In @mtfruse of the VanishPoiftsyringe is identical to that of a standard syringél the end ¢
an injection, when the automated retraction medmmnietracts the needle directly from the patiefelganto the barrel of the syringe. T
allows both hands to remain safely out of harm’'s. wBD's Integra™ operates in a similar way but may havgetremoved from the patien
order to have retraction of the needle occur.

BD and Covidien have controlling U.S. market shaye=ater financial resources; larger and more Bskednl sales, marketing &
distribution organizations; and greater marketuefice, including the lontgrm and/or exclusive contracts. The current diov hawv
restricted competition in the needle and syringeketa BD may be able to use its resources to ingrits products through researct
acquisitions or develop new products, which may peta more effectively with our products.

We continue to attempt to gain access to the mahketigh our sales efforts, our innovative techggldntroduction of new produc
and, when necessary, litigation. We are focusimgnethods of upgrading our manufacturing capabdityg efficiency in order to enable u:
compete by offering our technology at a reducedepriWe believe our current capitalization provitles resources necessary to impler
these changes and improve our manufacturing cgpad efficiency, thereby reducing our unit cost.

Our products have consistently received high quaditings. In the September 2003 issuéieélth Devices, ECRI Institute (“ECRI)
listed three syringes with the highest possiblengatour VanishPoin® syringe, NMT's safety syringad BDS Integra™ syringe. In t
August 2007 issue dfiealth Devices, ECRI listed two syringes with the highest possitaiting: our VanishPoirft  syringe and BDhtegra™
syringe.

In the October 1999 issue bfealth Devices , our VanishPoinf blood collection tube holder was one of the twoodlaollectior
devices that was given ECRI's highest possible dwarhe other was the Bio-Plexus PundBuard (when used with a disposable holi
ECRI listed the same two products for their highlatng in 2000 and in 2001.
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Our safety needle products also have an advantage ronretracting safety needles because minimal trairing changes
practitioners’normal routines are required. Use of our prodatds prohibits unfortunate and improper reuse. eSshfactors could materia
and beneficially affect the marketability of ouroducts. Demand could be increased by existingslatipn and other legislative &
investigativeefforts. Outsourcing arrangements such as ourpges from Double Dove have increased our manuiiagtaapacity with littl
or no capital outlay and provide a competitive cokicensing agreements could provide entry intev mearkets and generate additic
revenue.

Our competitive weaknesses include our current &dfakarket share because two wedtablished companies control most of the
market. Our competitive position is also weakebgdhe method that providers use for making puricigadecisions and the fact that our in
price per unit for our safety needle products mayhigher. Demand for our products could decrehseto the sale of the Integra™
retractable syringe manufactured by BD, which dates the market and has a wider range of prodémtdgs and more capital resources.

Research and Development

We spent $958,798; $1,071,143; and $1,066,068seafi2006, 2007, and 2008 respectively, on reseamdhdevelopment. Costs
2008 were primarily for validation testing and diexgnent work for the safety catheter as well ashéigcompensation costsOur ongoiny
research and development activities are perfornyeginbinternal research and development staff. #@m of engineers is developing pro:
improvements for current and future automated nmaashi Our limited access to the market has sloWwedntroduction of products. Possi
future products include needle medical devices lhickvthe automated retraction mechanism can bdeappk well as other safety med
devices.

Environmental Compliance

We believe that we do not incur material costs amnection with compliance with environmental lawd/e are considered
Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator bessawe generate less than 100 kilograms (220 Idshapardous waste per mon
Therefore, we are exempt from the reporting reaquénets set forth by the Texas Commission on Enviemal Quality. The waste that
generated at our facility is primarily made up lainimable liquids and paimelated waste and is sent for fuel blending by Gaféeen. Thi:
fuel blending process completely destroys our wastksatisfies our “cradle-to-grave” responsibility

Other nonhazardous production waste includes gdypropylene regrind that is sold for recyclingve also grind dirty plastic
syringes, and needles for disposal by Waste ManagenAll other nonhazardous waste produced isidensd municipal solid waste and ¢
to a sanitary landfill by Waste Management.

We also produce small amounts of regulated biollazer waste from contaminated sharps and laboratasfes. This waste is s
for incineration by Stericycle.

Employees

As of March 2, 2009, we had 144 full-time employesig parttime employees, and four independently contractetsaltants. Of tf
144 fulldime employees, six persons were engaged in rdsead development activities, 57 persons were estyag manufacturing ai
engineering, 16 persons were engaged in qualityrasse and regulatory affairs, 36 persons weregawa sales and marketing, 28 per:
were engaged in general and administrative funsti@nd one person in facilities. No employees @reered by collective bargaini
agreements. We are dependent upon a number ofgeraeat and technical personnel, and the loss @icgsr of one or more of su
employees could have a material adverse effecsorQur President and Chief Executive Officer, Therd. Shaw, has an employment con
that will end on December 31, 2010 which contamsuatomatic and continuous renewal provision forsegutive two-year periods.
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Financial Information About Geographic Areas

We have no longdived assets in foreign countries. Shipments terimational customers generally require a prepaymigmer by wir
transfer or an irrevocable confirmed letter of dre@Ve do extend credit to international custom@nssome occasions depending upon ce
criteria, including, but not limited to, the credibrthiness of the customer, the stability of tlermry, banking restrictions, and the size of
order. All transactions are in U.S. currency. &tteibute sales to countries based on the destimafi shipment.

2008 2007 2006
Domestic sale $ 23,244,337 % 21,461,71 % 22,240,34
International sales 4,654,94i 4,828,00: 3,084,17.
Total sales $ 27,899.31 $ 26,289,72  $ 25,324,51
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 14,435,66 $ 11,483,42 $ 12,212,14
Foreign $ — % — % _

We have no sales in any foreign country that exe@84 of revenue.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.vanishpoint.coriVe make our filings with the U.S. Securities &hdthange Commission (the “SEC”
available via our website. Upon request, we welldgleased to deliver written copies of our filidgee of charge.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the following matérigks facing us. If any of these risks occurr business, results of operation:
financial condition could be materially affected.

We Compete in a Monopolistic Marketplace

We operate in an environment that is dominatedhlbynajor syringe manufacturer in the U.S., BD. Meébeve that its monopolis
business practices continue despite its payindL@® $nillion to settle a prior lawsuit for anticonipge practices, business disparagement
tortious interference. Although we have made kaliprogress in some areas, such as the altermatama international markets, our volui
are not as high as they should be given the natudequality of our products, and the federal a@atkestegislation requiring use of safe ne
devices. In June 2007, we sued BD alleging infingnt of three patents and violations by BD offtéteral and state antitrust laws, and o
Lanham Act. We subsequently dropped one pateim dtam the lawsuit. In April 2008, we sued BD fofringement of a newly issued pat
that was subsequently consolidated with the othter case.

Our Cash Position Is Decreasing and Legal Expefseincreasing

Due to our operating losses and currently increpkggal fees, our cash position declined $7.2 arillas of December 31, 2008. !
litigation efforts will continue to require a sidigiant amount of cash until the issues are resolv@dr lawsuit against BD is currently schedi
for trial in October 2009. After conclusion of thr@l, legal expenses are expected to decreandisamtly for the patent infringement cases.

In the event we continue to have only limited markecess, the cash provided by the prior litigagettlements and generated f
operations becomes insufficient, and royalties frBfiMD are not forthcoming, we would take cost cujtimeasures to reduce c
requirements. Such measures could
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result in reduction of units being produced, retucbf workforce, reduction of salaries of officemsd other nonhourly employees, and def
of royalty payments.

We Have Generally Been Unable to Gain SufficientidaAccess to Achieve Profitable Operations

We have incurred net operating losses throughsalaF quarters of 2008. We may experience opeagatisses in the future. If we i
unable to gain sufficient market access and mastkate, we may be unable to continue to financeareBeand development as well as suf
operations and expansion of production.

We Are Dependent On Our Aging Patent Protection

Our main competitive strength is our technologye Wfe dependent on our patent rights, and if otenpaights are invalidated
circumvented, our business would be adversely tftecPatent protection is considered, in the aggies to be of material importance in
marketing of products in the U.S. and in most mégweign markets. Patents covering products thathave introduced normally prov
market exclusivity, which is important for the sassful marketing and sale of our products.

As our technology ages (and the associated pafergXpires), our competitive position in the magtace will weaken. The initi
patents protecting our revolutionary spring actsyminge will expire beginning in May 2015. Patdife may be extended, not through
original patents, but through related improvemei@sir ability to improve these patents is uncertdiventually, however, our patent protec
may decrease and we will be vulnerable to otherpaiitors utilizing our technology.

Our Patents Are Subject to Litigation

We are currently involved in multiple patent diggmt Patent litigation and challenges involving @atents are costly a
unpredictable and may deprive us of market excitysior a patented product or, in some cases, tpady patents may prevent us fi
marketing and selling a product in a particularggaphic area.

We Are Vulnerable to New Technologies

Because we have a narrow focus on particular ptdéhwees and technology (currently predominantlyaetable needle products),
are vulnerable to the development of superior camgeroducts and to changes in technology whialdeliminate or reduce the need for
products. If a superior technology is created déwmand for our products could greatly diminish.

Our Competitors Have Greater Resources

The three leading manufacturers of hypodermic ggsnand blood collection products are BD, Covidiemgd Terumo. All thre
companies offer both standard syringes and at tesssafety syringe alternative. BD also offersteactable syringe. These competitors |
greater financial resources, larger and more dastadl sales and marketing and distribution orgdioizs, and greater market influer
including longterm contracts. These competitors may be abls¢ahese resources to improve their products throesearch and acquisitic
or develop new products, which may compete morecéffely with our products. If our competitors dse to use their resources to cr
products superior to ours, we may be unable tcoselproducts and our ability to continue operatioould be weakened.

10



Table of Contents

The Majority of Our International Sales Are Filleiding One Supplier

Most international sales are filled by productiooni Double Dove. In the event that we become wnttbpurchase such product fr
Double Dove, we would need to find an alternatepiap for the 0.5cc insulin syringe and the 5cc dfdc syringes and increase dom
production for the 1cc and 3cc syringes to avodtisauption in supply. As of December 31, 2008, ragpnately 74.0% of our production w
provided by Double Dove.

Fluctuations in Supplies of Inventory Could Tempiydncrease Costs

Fluctuations in the cost and availability of rawterals and inventory and the ability to mainta@wdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 26.0%) of the products indt® This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

We Are Controlled by One Shareholder

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chairman of theed® and Ms. Suzanne August own 35.7% and 11.8%pectively, of th
outstanding Common Stock as of March 2, 2009. Sttees held by Ms. August are controlled by Mr.vparsuant to a Voting Agreeme
which terminates upon sale of all the shares ftuevar if terminated by both parties in writing. rMshaw will, therefore, have the ability
direct our operations and financial affairs andubstantially influence the election of memberswf Board of Directors. His interests may
always coincide with our interests or the interedtsther stockholders. This concentration of omsh®, for example, may have the effec
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in adntmpeding a merger, consolidation, takeoverthieo business combination involving ut
discouraging a potential acquirer from making adeenoffer or otherwise attempting to obtain conwblus, which in turn could materia
adversely affect the market price of our CommorcistdOf the 23,800,064 shares of Common Stock andshg as of March 2, 2009, execu
officers and Directors own or control 11,337,000.626) of the shares of outstanding Common Stockinmtuding Common Stock equivale
such as preferred shares and options.

We Have Limited Access to the Capital Markets

The volume of trading in our Common Stock on theS¥YAlternext US, LLC (“NYSE Alternext”)férmerly the American Stox
Exchange) is low. Accordingly, it is unclear ifetle is any significant market for our shares. Thay reduce our ability to raise cash thrc
public or private offerings in the future.

Our Stock Price Sometimes Decreases Below NYSEmdte¢ Continued.isting Standards

Our stock price may be deemed to have been séfiim@g substantial period of time at a low price phare”which may result in o1
receipt of a notification from the NYSE Alternextat a reverse split is necessary. We have receiveslich notification. When a compi
receives such a natification, failure to effeceaarse stock split may result in suspension or vainiopom trading on the NYSE Alternext. T
NYSE Alternext may initiate delisting procedures,its discretion. Delisting of our shares woul@aty affect the liquidity of our shares
would reduce our ability to raise funds from théesaf equity in the future. However, we believeslsudelisting application to be unlikel
Furthermore, in the event that we receive a defayjidetter from the NYSE Alternext, we will haveethight to appeal such determination
addition, entities that were given such noticeseuritie American Stock Exchange standards were giyngiven up to 18 months to execu
plan to bring themselves into compliance with tieéig standards.
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Qil Prices and Transportation Costs May Increase@nsts

As our products are made from petroleum produtitstfations in the costs of oil and transportatisaly have an impact on our cos
Increases in costs may not be recoverable throtigh imcreases of our products.

Current Economic Conditions May Decrease Colletitstmf Accounts

Although we believe that we have granted creditreditworthy firms, current economic conditions may afféwe timing and/c
collectability of some accounts. The Provisiondoubtful accounts increased by $245,958 for 20BBRvbrings the balance to $499,966.

We Face Inherent Product Liability Risks

As a manufacturer and provider of safety needleyets, we face an inherent business risk of exgosuproduct liability claims
the event of product failure or claim of harm calibg product operation. Product failure could tesuinjury to the patient and could exp
healthcare workers to the risk of blood borne pgéms. If any of our products prove to be defegtive may be required to recall th
products. We do not have recall insurance.

If a product liability claim is made and damages ar excess of our product liability coverage, competitive position could |
weakened by the amount of money we could be redjuivepay to compensate those injured by our predug¥e have products liabil
coverage with St. Paul Insurance Company covermgpub1,000,000 per occurrence, with coverage up2t600,000 in the aggregate. E
claim is subject to a $25,000 deductible. Addigillyy we have additional product liability protemti under an Umbrella Liability Policy. TI
policy provides an additional $10,000,000 per ommee and aggregate limits in the event claims exkdbe primary commercial gene
liability policy limit. We have not had any produ@bility claims.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
Not applicable and none.
Item 2. Properties.

Our 22,500 square foot headquarters is located htL®bo Lane, on 35 acres, which we own, overlogkiake Lewisville in Little
Elm, Texas. The headquarters are in good conditimhhouse our administrative offices and manufadfacility. The manufacturing facili
produced approximately 26.0% of the units that wsslel in 2008. We placed a 47,250 square foot narse in service in March 2005
expanded it (by an additional 47,250 feet) in 2009the event of a disruption in service of outside supplier, Double Dove, we believe
could produce quantities sufficient to meet demander current circumstances except for demand.fwc) 5cc, and 10cc syringes which
sold principally in the international market. Imat event, we would attempt to engage another maatwrer. We are currently utilizing I¢
than 25% of our current productive capacity.

We obtained a loan from 1st International Bank {‘'lh¢ernational”)for $2,500,000, secured by the land and existinfgimgs, whict
provided funding for the construction of the 47,28uare foot warehouse placed in service in 200% proceeds from the loan were use
pay off the remaining $475,000 of the revolvingditeagreement with 1st International in additionftmding the warehouse and rele
infrastructure. The payments for the permanentlifugn are based on a twenty-year amortization wiffveryear maturity. Interest rates
based on the amount of funds kept on deposit wiéghltank. Accordingly, interest will vary from th#all Street Journal Prime Rate (
“WSJPR”) to the WSJPR plus one percent, with floors that memyge from 4.25% to 6.50%. Compensating balantekstalnternationi
affecting the interest rate will range from $0 &08,000.
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On August 29, 2008, we obtained a $4,210,000 strdiige of credit from Lewisville State Bank, a tion of 1st International Ban
The purpose of the line of credit was to expandwheshouse, including additional office space, eostruct a new Controlled Environme
The maturity date is February 28, 2010. The irgterate is WSJPR plus 0.25%. We may prepay the dincredit without penalty. T
construction project has been substantially coragleiWe expect to replace our note with permarieah€ing in the second quarter.

In the opinion of Management, the property and gaeint are suitable for their intended use and dexj@ately covered by
insurance policy.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On August 12, 2005, we filed a lawsuit against Abhaboratories (“Abbott”Jn the United States District Court in the Easteistrict
of Texas, Texarkana Division. We are alleging draand breach of contract in connection with theidweati Marketing and Distributic
Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000, which was teaiteohon October 15, 2003. We are seeking damalgies we estimate to be in millio
of dollars of lost profits, out of pocket expensasd other damages. In addition, we are seekimitipet damages, pre- and pgstigmen
interest, and attorney’s fees. Following Abbettinsuccessful attempt to get the case dismissgm@ered to arbitration, Abbott filed
answer and counterclaim on July 15, 2008, allegiexeral breaches of contract, breach of impliedamy of merchantability, and breact
express warranty, seeking in excess of $6,000,8060impensatory damages as well as seeking attorfesgs. We deny the validity
Abbott's counterclaims. Some discovery has already tplase (related to the hearings addressing the pradion to compel arbitration) a
additional discovery is underway. The District @cwas issued a scheduling order calling for fri@lanuary 2010.

In August 2006, we were sued by OMI in Federal €afirAustralia, alleging that two letters writtea OMI by outside couns
contained unjustified threats of patent infringeméunt seeking no damages. OMI later amendedbitsptaint to seek a declaratory judgrn
that OMI does not infringe Australian Patent No18®8, again seeking no damages. Following adayetrial in June 2007, the Court held
one of the two letters written by outside counsgltained a threat of patent infringement, and ae@uabsts to OMI. Following a orday tria
in June 2008, the Court issued a declaratory juagrmeAugust 2008 stating that OMI'syringe does not infringe our Australian patem
701878 but also awarding costs to us. We and QMéaquently agreed that each party will bear ita oasts, and the matter was settle
October 2008.

In April 2008, we sued OMI in the United Statestbes Court for the Eastern District of Texas, Tiyl@ivision, alleging that OMI hs
infringed two U.S. patents that are not at issu¢hi Australian litigation (6,572,584 and 7,351,R2%Ve also allege theft of confiden
information, intentional interference with contmeind engaging in false advertising that wrongfdigparages and mischaracterizes our sy
products. We further allege that OMI made faldegaitions regarding the source of origin of itsepafsyringe products being offered in
U.S. We seek injunctive relief, unspecified damaiesluding treble damages) and reimbursement wirrggys fees in the suit. OMI t
counterclaimed against us, seeking declaratorymedgs of norinfringement and invalidity of our asserted paten@MI is not seekin
monetary damages. Trial is set for December 2@@déscovery is ongoing.

In June 2007, we sued BD in the United States iDishourt for the Eastern District of Texas, Marsiavision, alleging infringemer
of three patents (5,578,011; 5,632,733; and 6,099,8nd violations by BD of the federal and statdtaust laws, and of the Lanham Act.
subsequently dropped the 5,578,011 patent allegafiom the lawsuit. We and Thomas J. Shaw, plaitiff, are seeking injunctive reli
unspecified monetary damages and reimbursemertitarhays fees in the suit. BD counterclaimed fon4infringement and invalidity of tf
asserted patents. In January 2008, the Courtesike patent claims from the other claims pendasglution of the patent dispute, whic
set for trial in October 2009. In April 2008, wedaThomas J. Shaw sued BD in the United Statesi@i§ourt
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for the Eastern District of Texas, Marshall Divisjalleging infringement of another recently isspedent (7,351,224), and seeking injunc
relief, unspecified monetary damages (includingleelamages) and reimbursement of attorneys BBscounterclaimed for nomfringemen
and invalidity of the asserted patent. We and Témih Shaw moved to consolidate this case wittother patent case against BD that
pending in Marshall and the Court granted our nmtamnsolidating this case with our abatated case filed in June 2007. The Court issi
claim construction order in this matter on Janugrg2009.

In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holditgs, (“MDC”) sued us in the United States District Court for Beester
District of Texas, Texarkana Division, initiallyleging that the Company is infringing two U.S. pagseof MDC (6,179,812 and 7,090,656)
are licensed to BD. BD and MDC seek injunctiveaklnd unspecified damages. We counterclaimedidofarations of nomfringement
invalidity and unenforceability of the assertedepds. The plaintiffs subsequently dropped allegegtiwith regard to patent no. 7,090,656
we subsequently dropped our counterclaims for wreghbility of the asserted patents. The Courtlooted a claims construction hearing
September 25, 2008 and issued its claims congtruotider on November 14, 2008. No trial date rentset.

In March 2008, MedSafe Technologies LLC (“MedSafielially sued us and BD in the United States Dist€Court for the District ¢
South Carolina, Greenville Division, alleging imfgement of a MedSafe patent (6,074,370) and sedhkjngctive relief and unspecifi
monetary damages. We counterclaimed for declastimf noninfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability ofiet asserted patent. |
subsequently settled with MedSafe. Effective Ddoen?2, 2008, we resolved our litigation with MefiSay entering into a PATEN
LICENSE/ASSIGNMENT AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT with M#Safe and Syringe Development Partners, LLC; Willi&.S
Pressly, Sr.; Charles A Vaughn, Sr.; G. Samuel Bray; and Thomas R. Ellis (collectively, the “Med&aPlaintiffs”) (the ‘MedSafi
Settlement Agreement”). This MedSafe SettlememeAment ends the patent infringement litigatiomieen us and MedSafe.

In September 2008, we and Thomas J. Shaw sued iBkhei United States District Court for the EastBistrict of Texas, Tyle
Division, alleging infringement of U.S. patent n@s572,584 and 7,351,224, and seeking injunctiliefreinspecified monetary damages
reimbursement of attorneys fees. SMI has courgtieneld against us, seeking declaratory judgmentooinfringement and invalidity of tt
asserted patents. SMI is not seeking monetary gdasnaNo trial date has been set and discoverpdtaget commenced.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securitydolders.
No matters were submitted to a vote during thetfoquarter of 2008.
PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases ofdtity Securities.

MARKET INFORMATION

Our Common Stock has been listed on the NYSE Adterioinder the symbol “RVPSince May 4, 2001. Shown below are the
and low sales prices of our Common Stock as regdiyethe NYSE Alternext for each quarter of the tas fiscal years:

2008 High Low
Fourth Quarte $1.46 $0.45
Third Quartel $1.60 $1.20
Second Quarte $1.68 $1.22
First Quartel $2.00 $1.30
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2007 High Low
Fourth Quarte $2.12 $1.40
Third Quartel $2.60 $1.72
Second Quarte $3.06 $2.25
First Quarte! $3.48 $2.70

SHAREHOLDERS

As of March 2, 2009, there were 23,800,064 shafgdommmon Stock held by 261 shareholders of recatdincluding shareholde
who beneficially own Common Stock held in nomineéstreet name.”

DIVIDENDS

We have not ever declared or paid any dividendthenCommon Stock. We have no current plans togugycash dividends on |
Common Stock. We intend to retain all earninggegx those required to be paid to the holders efRtfeferred Stock as resources alloy
support operations and future growth. Dividends Gommon Stock cannot be paid so long as preferiedleshds are unpaid. As
December 31, 2008, an aggregate of $13,883,00(femped dividends were in arrears.
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Seeltem 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Omers and Management and Related Stockholder Matterfor a char
describing compensation plans under which equityisies are authorized.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

In the first quarter of 2008, three accredited 8toes converted 44,650 shares of Preferred Staokdnmmon Stock on a one for ¢
basis for no additional consideration, as repoitedur Form 10Q quarterly report filed with the SEC which is dahle on EDGAR. The
were no sales of unregistered securities in therskchird, or fourth quarters of 2008.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND RIEIATED PURCHASERS

The following table shows purchases of equity séesrby the issuer in 2008. No purchases wereemmdaffiliated purchasers

2008.
Maximum number (or
Total number of approximate dollar value)
Average shares (or units) of shares (or units) that
Total number of price paid purchased as part of may yet be purchased
shares (or units per share publicly announced under the plans or
Period purchased) (or unit) plans or programs programs
Options ta
purchase an
aggregate of Options to purchase ¢
Novembel 1,925,365 aggregate of 1,925,365
18, 2008 shares® N/A shares 0
1) We offered, pursuant to Section 3(a)(9) of the &ttes Act of 1933 to exchange certain outstandifigible options for new option

Such new options were granted under our 2008 Sigtlon Plan. The offer was made on the terms aijkest to the conditions describec
the Offer to Exchange Stock Options dated Octoler2D08 (the “Exchange Offer”)The Exchange Offer expired at 5:00 p.m., Ce
Standard Time, on November 18, 2008. Eligibleipigants (totaling 103 persons) tendered, and
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we accepted for cancellation, eligible options tochase an aggregate of 1,925,365 shares of ounmar$tock representing 99.4% of the t
shares of Common Stock underlying options eligtblexchange in the Exchange Offer. We issued naoms to purchase an aggregat
962,683 shares of Common Stock in exchange focdheellation of the tendered options.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data are qualifiegl reference to, and should be read in conjunciiith, our audited financi
statements and the notes to those statementslandgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation:
appearing elsewhere herein. The selected Statero&@perations data presented below for the yesded December 31, 2005 and 2004
the Balance Sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 20@ 2004 have been derived from our auditechbiash statements, which are
included herein.

(In thousands except for earnings per share, shamdspercentages)*

As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Sales, ne $ 27,89¢ $ 26,29 $ 20,897 $ 21,157 $ 21,13¢
Reimbursed discounts — — 4,42 3,07¢ 38€
Total sales 27,89¢ 26,29( 25,32¢ 24,23t 21,52
Cost of sales 19,67 18,30( 17,77¢ 15,42¢ 16,41!
Gross profil 8,22¢ 7,99( 7,54¢ 8,80¢ 5,111
Total operating expenses 18,67! 17,93¢ 14,26! 11,68: 13,11(
Loss from operation (10,449 (9,94¢) (6,715 (2,877 (7,999
Interest incomt 85¢ 1,87( 1,97¢ 1,372 47t
Interest expense, n (549) (326 (411 (340 (243
Litigation settlements, nt — — — — 74,63¢
Net income (loss) before income ta (9,644 (8,402 (5,150 (1,849 66,86¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax — (1,459 (1,280 (60€) 12,17%
Net income (loss (9,644 (6,94¢) (3,870 (1,23¢) 54,691
Preferred Stock dividend requireme (1,379) (1,399 (1,457) (1,509 (1,999
Earnings (loss) applicable to common

shareholder $ (11,019 $ (8,349 $ (5,32) $ (2,74) $ 52,69¢
Earnings (loss) per sha— basic $ (0.46) $ (0.35) $ (0.29) $ (0.12) $ 2.3
Earnings (loss) per share — diluted $ (0.46) $ (0.35) $ (0.29) $ (0.12) $ 2.0¢
Weighted average shares outstanc 23,794,56 23,727,02 23,591,99 23,332,27 22,600,16
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As of and for the Years Ended December 3:

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Current asset $ 43,61 $ 51,91¢ $ 57,78. $ 61,48" $ 64,67+
Current liabilities $ 10,23¢ % 8,78t $ 6,891 $ 545¢ $ 7,852
Property, plant, and equipment, | $ 14,43¢ $ 11,48: $ 12,21 % 11,92¢ $ 11,057
Total asset $ 58,53¢ $ 64,33( $ 70,79t $ 73,75¢ % 76,12
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti $ 6,09¢ $ 3,741 % 4,137 $ 4351 % 3,53¢
Stockholder’ equity $ 42,20t $ 51,76. $ 59,71( $ 63,23t $ 63,66:
Redeemable Preferred Stock (in sha 2,285,261 2,329,911 2,441,16! 2,498,66! 2,572,111
Cash dividends per common sh $ — 3 — 3 — $ — 3 —
Gross profit margit 29.5% 30.4% 29.8% 36.2% 23.1%
* Events that could positively affettte trends indicated above include receipt of rigslfrom BTMD, continued reductions

manufactured costs, continued increasing averdgs paces, and the gaining of market access. rEuiterest income trends may negati
affect the trends indicated above due to possibhtiouing low interest rates, lower cash balanesswill our investment of our cash in L
Treasury bills and other U.S. government backedritées. Furthermore, as our products are mada fsetroleum products, the changing
of oil and transportation may have an impact onamsts to the extent increases may not be recdeetfatough price increases of our prod
and reductions in oil prices may not quickly affpetroleum product prices.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT WARNING

Certain statements included by reference in tHiadficontaining the words “could,” “may,” “believgs“anticipates,” “intends,”
“expects,” and similar such words constitute fordvknoking statements within the meaning of the Pav&ecurities Litigation Reform Ac
Any forward{ooking statements involve known and unknown riskacertainties, and other factors that may causeaotual result
performance, or achievements to be materially diffe from any future results, performance, or aghigents expressed or implied by <
forwarddooking statements. Such factors include, amotgrst our ability to maintain liquidity, our maingnce of patent protection,
impact of current litigation (as it affects our toas well as market access and the viability ofgatents), our ability to maintain favora
supplier arrangements and relationships, receiyalties from BTMD, the impact of dramatic increasesdemand, our ability to quick
increase capacity, our ability to access the markat ability to maintain or lower production castair ability to continue to finance resee
and development as well as operations and expap$iproduction, the increased interest of largerkaiplayers, specifically BD, in providi
devices to the safety market, and other factorsreeted intem 1A. Risk Factors. Given these uncertainties, undue reliance shoatde
placed on forward-looking statements.

OVERVIEW

We have been manufacturing and marketing our ptedato the marketplace since 1997. We currenttyioe other safety medic
products in addition to safety syringe productsie@uch product, the Patient Safe™ syringe, wheédices the risk of infection resulting fr
IV line contamination, entered the market in 2088fety syringes comprised 98.6% of our sales ir8200

Our products have been and continue to be dis&tiboationally through numerous distributors. Hogrewe have been blocked fr
access to the market by exclusive marketing prestamgaged in by BD, who dominates the market.b&lieve that its monopolistic busin
practices continue despite its paying $100 miliilor2004 to settle a prior lawsuit with us for aofigpetitive practices, business disparager
and tortious interference. Although we have manétdd progress in some areas, such as the aleewae and international markets,
volumes are not as high as they should be givemahgre and quality of our products, the federal state legislation requiring the use of :
needle devices, and various Senate Subcommittempea@an Group Purchasing Organizations.

We continue to pursue various strategies to hatterb&ccess to the hospital market, as well asratfzekets, including attempting

gain access to the market through our sales effautsinnovative technology, introduction of nevogucts, and, when necessary, litigation.
are also marketing more
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product internationally. Beginning in 2004, we weayiven an award (from PATH) to supply syringesvémious African countries under !
Presidents Emergency Plan for AIDS relief (PEPFAR). Awandsreased significantly from 2004 to 2007. Thetoaration of PEPFAR hi
been reauthorized by Congress through 2013. Hayé&weding for the procurement of safety syringeshis program is uncertain.

As a result of the introduction of VanishPofhsyringes through the PEPFAR initiative, African nties have begun to proci
products outside of the US-funded program. In 200& Director General of NigereNational Agency for Food and Drug Administrateom
Control (NAFDAC), endorsed automated retractionirgygs for use throughout Nigeria. We are currestyling syringes to a Nigeri
distributor for use in that country. At the end2ff08, the Deputy Prime Minister of Namibia alsdlpally endorsed automated retrac
syringes as a public intervention that would “pobteealth workers and save their patient’s lives”.

Additionally, an Australian distributor was awardadone-year contract in March 2007 to supply ouni$taPoint® automate
retraction syringes to all of Queensland HealtB02 acute care facilities. Queensland Health @epartment within the government
Queensland, Australia. The contract was renewedrfadditional two years. VanishPofht producesdistributed in Australia by Brisbane-
based Scientific Educational Supplies Pty Ltd. mheber of international distributors continuegncrease.

In the event we continue to have only limited marlecess, the cash provided by the litigation eeitints and generated fr
operations becomes insufficient and royalties frBAMD are not forthcoming, we would take cost cujtimeasures to reduce c
requirements. Such measures could result in tect®n of units being produced, the reduction afrkforce, the reduction of salaries
officers and other nonhourly employees, and therdaff of royalty payments.

We are focusing on methods of upgrading our manufegy capability and efficiency in order to redumests. We believe our curn
capitalization provides the resources necessaignpbement some of these changes and improve ouufaeturing capacity and efficient
thereby reducing our unit cost.

Product purchases from Double Dove, a Chinese maatwrer, have enabled us to increase manufactgepgcity with little capit:
outlay and have provided a competitive manufactuwrest. Double Dove manufactured, in 2008, appraxély 74.0% of the units \
produced. These purchases have improved profijimem spite of limited revenues. The cost ofquction per unit has generally declinel
volumes increased. Double Dove increased the piitéhe fourth quarter of 2008 to us by $0.005y@t. Product cost reductions coulc
adversely affected by increased material and tiensjion costs. We believe we could make up angderm disruption in these supplies
utilizing more of the capacity at the Little Elncflity, except for the 0.5cc insulin syringe, thectand 10cc syringes and the autodisable sy
which altogether comprised about 4.6% of our 2@3&nues.

We had a Licensing Agreement with BTMD which exdiren May 13, 2008. As a result of the expiratidnttee contract, w
recognized $100,000 of prepaid royalty income i $kcond quarter of 2008 as other income. Rogétiat were expected in 2008 and
were not received due to the time needed to bhédddctory, assembly equipment, and the relatedstructure as well as the need of BTMI
meet the requisite Chinese government requirementse facility has been completed and BTMD is ie frocess of meeting Chini
government requirements. We still continue to expeyalty payments although we are unable to ptdle date we will begin to receive s
royalties. We should begin earning royalties omeehave an effective agreement, Chinese governnegoirements are met, and BTML
able to produce and sell products.

Historically, unit sales have increased in theelgart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.

With increased volumes, our manufacturing unit €dstve generally tended to decline. Factors tbaldcaffect our unit costs,
addition to Double Dove' recent increase in unit costs of $0.005, incladanging production volumes, costs of petroleundpets, an
transportation costs. Increases in such costsnoglye recoverable through price increases of mayrts.

We have substantially completed the expansion @hasting warehouse. This expansion will increagewarehouse area, provide
additional office space, and add a second Conttdlavironment.
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LIQUIDITY AND FUTURE CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

At the present time, Management does not interrdise equity capital. Due to the funds receivednfiprior litigation settlements, \
have sufficient cash reserves and intend to relggmrations, cash reserves, and debt financinigeagrimary ongoing sources of cash.

Historical Sources of Liquidity

We have historically funded operations primarilgrfr the proceeds from private placements, loans,liigdtion settlements. W
were capitalized with approximately $52,600,008edifrom six separate private placement offering® raised $47,375,600 in cash from
private sales of an aggregate of 11,710,221 sldr€snvertible Preferred Stock. In addition, weaited a cancellation of $3,679,284 in ¢
and $1,550,000 in Accounts payable in exchang&éoies V Class B Convertible Preferred Stock.

We obtained $3,910,000 in 2000 from bank loans lotlv $3,435,000 has been repaid and $475,000 iiaameed with a new nc
for $2,500,000 with Lewisville State Bank, a dieisiof 1st International Bank. Additionally, we edved a Small Business Administration |
of $1,000,000 in 1996 to pay for portions of auttedaassembly equipment, mulvity molds, and other equipment. This loan hesr
repaid. Furthermore, we borrowed $5,000,000 in0208der our Credit Agreement with Abbott. In O&pB002 we repaid the Abbott n
with proceeds from a new note from Katie Petrolelmo, for $3,000,000 and a portion of the procefeds a private placement. In 2008,
received a construction line of credit for up t2i4,000 to fund an expansion of our warehouse.

Internal Sources of Liguidity

Margins and Market Access

To achieve break even quarters, we need minima&saco hospital markets which has been difficutbttitain due to the monopolis
marketplace which was the subject of our initiavdait and now also included in our second lawsgétiest BD. We will continue to attem
to gain access to the market through our salestgffionovative technology, the introduction of npmducts, and, when necessary, litigation.

We are focusing on methods of upgrading our manufg capability and efficiency in order to reduamssts. We believe our curre
capitalization provides the resources necessaignpbement some of these changes and improve ouufaeturing capacity and efficien
thereby reducing our unit cost.

Beginning in early 2004, we began to receive shipnté product from Double Dove which enabled uddwer our unit costs
Fluctuations in the cost and availability of raw taréals and inventory and our ability to maintasvdrable supplier arrangements
relationships could result in the need to manufactll (as opposed to 26.0%) of our products inUt®. This could temporarily increase |
costs as we ramp up domestic production.

The mix of domestic and international sales afféttésaverage sales price of our products. Gemethk higher the ratio of domes
sales to international sales, the higher the aeesades price will be. Typically international eslare shipped directly from China to
customer. Purchases of product manufactured inaClifi available, usually decrease the average afostanufacture for all units as dome
costs, such as indirect labor and overhead, renetatively constant. Double Dove increased theitgs to us by $0.005 per unit in the foi
guarter of 2008. The number of units producechigyGompany versus manufactured in China can haigndicant effect on the carrying co
of inventory as well as Cost of sales. We will tione to evaluate the appropriate mix of productmnufactured domestically and th
manufactured in China to achieve economic benaftsvell as to maintain our domestic manufacturiagability. Currently, approximate
26.0% of our products are produced domestically.

Fluctuations in the cost of oil (since our produats petroleum based) and transportation and themeoof units purchased frc
Double Dove may have an impact on the unit costaiofproduct.
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Increases in such costs may not be recoverableighr@rice increases of our products. Reductionsilirprices may not quickly affe
petroleum product prices.

Seasonality
Historically, unit sales have increased in theelgtart of the year due, in part, to the demandyoinges during the flu season.
Licensing Agreement

We had a Licensing Agreement with BTMD which exdiren May 13, 2008. As a result of the expiratidntiee contract, w
recognized $100,000 of prepaid royalty income i d¢kcond quarter of 2008 as other income. Rogatiat were expected in 2008 and =
were not received due to the time needed to bhédddctory, assembly equipment, and the relatedstructure as well as the need of BTMI
meet the requisite Chinese government requiremente facility has been completed and BTMD is ie throcess of meeting Chin
government requirements. We still continue to expayalty payments, although we are unable toiptede date we will begin to receive s
royalties. We should begin earning royalties omeehave an effective agreement, Chinese governnegoirements are met, and BTML
able to produce and sell products.

Cash Requirements

Due to funds received from prior litigation settiemts, we have sufficient cash reserves and intemely on operations, cash reser
and debt financing as the primary ongoing souréessh. In the event we continue to have onlytlhimarket access and cash generated
operations becomes insufficient to support opemnatiove would take cost cutting measures to redash pequirements. Such measures ¢
result in the reduction of units being producee, tbduction of workforce, the reduction of salaoé®fficers and other nonhourly employe
and the deferral of royalty payments.

External Sources of Liquidity

We have obtained several loans from our inceptidnich have, together with the proceeds from thessaf equities and litigatic
efforts, enabled us to pursue development and ptamfu of our products. Given the current economdnditions, our ability to obta
additional funds through loans is uncertain. Femtfore, the shareholders previously authorizeddatitianal 5,000,000 shares of a Clas
Preferred Stock that could, if necessary, be daséghand used to raise funds through the salewfyegDue to the current market price of
Common Stock, it is unlikely we would choose tesesfunds by the sale of equity.

CAPITAL RESOURCES
In 2006, we invested $500,000 in a limited liapillompany (“LLC"). We exercised our option and éumds were returned in 2008.

Material Commitments for Expenditures

We have substantially completed expansion of ouel@use (including additional warehouse spacetiaddi office space, and a n
Controlled Environment). We are funding this exgian with a construction line of credit from Lewiky State Bank, a division of I
International Bank, for approximately $4.2 milliosecured by a second lien deed on the land andirexibuildings. Draws under t
construction line of credit, which have totaled mpgmately $2.8 million at the end of the year, aspected to be replaced by perma
financing in the second quarter of 2009.
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Trends in Capital Resources

Interest expense will increase due to the recentdd approximately $4.2 million, but will be somewhmitigated by lower borrowir
rates if current conditions in the credit marketsitue. Interest income may be negatively affédig lower interest rates and our p
movement of cash to U.S. Treasury bills and oth&. ldovernment backed securitie®lthough we believe that we have granted crec
credit-worthy firms, current economic conditionsyngfect the timing and/or collectability of somecaunts.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains trend informatiand other forwardeoking statements that involve a number of risks
uncertainties. Our actual future results couldedifnaterially from our historical results of opgoas and those discussed in the forward-
looking statements. All period references areupfiscal years ended December 2008, 2007 or 2@@lar amounts have been roundec
ease of reading.

Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2008, and Year Ended December 31, 2007

Revenues increased 6.1%, due principally to higlverage sales prices and greater volumes. Donszdés were 83.3% of reven
with international sales comprising the remainddnit sales of the 1cc syringe increased 22.7%3audunit sales decreased 4.0%. Unit ¢
of all products increased 3.1%. Domestic unitsale well as average sales prices increased.n#tignal unit sales and average selling p
declined. Sales to one distributor accounted Yot% and 13.7% of our revenues in 2008 and 20@pewdively.

Cost of sales increased due to higher manufactwirsgs and higher volumes. Royalty expenses wigteehdue to an increase
gross revenues.

As a result, gross profit margins declined from486.in 2007 to 29.5% in 2008.

Operating expenses increased from the prior yeartduhigher general and administrative expensematetd by lower Sales a
marketing and Research and development costs.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased due pyintariteduced travel and entertainment, trade shand market expen
compensation and office supplies. Consulting egpeaiso decreased.

Research and development costs were flat. We barkases in engineering costs due principally ghdr costs of validation a
engineering samples offset by higher compensatisisc

General and administrative costs increased dueipehy to increased legal costs (including a settnt of litigation whereby v
obtained a patent license/assignment), office esggncompensation, property taxes and freight .cds@vel and entertainment costs and
to distributors decreased.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements decreasedalgenversion of Preferred Stock to Common Stotke dividend arrearage
December 31, 2008, on all classes of PreferreckStas approximately $13.9 million.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess i@bd cash balances. Interest expense decraseséal [dwer interest rates mitiga
by higher debt balances and capitalized interestcipally due to the construction of the warehouse

Other accrued liabilities increased due to prepaysfom international customers.
Cash flow from operations was a negative $5.9 amilfior 2008 due principally to our losses. Theeefffof noneash expenses and

change in working capital was a positive $3.7 miili Investing activities utilized $1.9 million @ash.
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Comparison of Year Ended
December 31, 2007, and Year Ended December 31, 2006

Revenues increased due principally to increaseels sal the international market. Domestic salesew&t.6% of revenues w
international sales comprising the remainder. Jaies of the 1cc syringe increased 7.3% and 5itsales increased 30.6%. Unit sales ¢
products increased 7.5%. The discount reimburstsnemded in 2006. The discount reimbursement progexpired after the settlem
agreement under which it was established provided total of $8.0 million in reimbursements. Waatlrecognized $8.0 million in cumulat
discount reimbursements by the third quarter of6208ales to three distributors accounted for 36abfb 31.3% of our revenues in 2007
2006, respectively.

Cost of sales as a percentage of revenues decrslggiety due to higher volumes offset by the lower averagkng price principall
in the international sales. The increased voluff@aduction resulted in a lower unit cost. Royakpenses were flat.

As a result, gross profits increased and grosstpmafrgins increased slightly from 29.8% in 2008@4% in 2007.
Operating expenses increased from the prior yeargpily due to increases in General and adminiseatosts.

Sales and marketing expenses declined due primarifecreased marketing and trade show expenseealsed compensation
consulting costs were mitigated by reductions atlstoption expenses and travel and entertainment.

Research and development costs were somewhat hig¥ehad increases in engineering costs due paifigito validation testing ai
the development work on the IV safety catheterld@gtier compensation costs.

General and administrative costs increased dueipsly to higher legal expenses. Compensatiots¢ositside accounting costs,
distribution fees also increased. Stock optioneeses, shareholder expenses, consulting and gailgoreased. Legal costs concerning
litigation against BD comprise the largest amouriegal fees and have a significant effect on ogremses. Our lawsuit against BD is curre
scheduled for trial in October 2009. After con@bmsof the trial, legal expenses are expected twadese significantly. The legal costs incu
in 2007 with regard to the Abbott litigation arevier than those in 2006. We expect such costsrtinee until the litigation is resolved. \
also have higher litigation expenses concerning OWe had decreases in taxes other than income tax2007. We awarded merit incree
to our employees in 2006. We donated product imtEmnational humanitarian effort in 2006. Thileve been no stock options awarded ¢
2004; therefore, this expense continues to deemthe costs become fully amortized with virtualbne recorded in 2007. We also incre:
our allowance for bad debt.

Preferred Stock dividend requirements declined tdueonversion of Preferred Stock into Common Sto€ke dividend arrearage
December 31, 2007, on all classes of PreferreckStas approximately $12,500,000.

Interest income decreased due to lower interess @td cash balances. Interest expense decresséal ldwer interest rates and ¢
balances.

Provision for income tax benefits consists prinyaof the settlement in our favor of a state taxiu@/e also have a valuation rese
for all deferred taxes, with the exception of deddrtaxes on the beneficial conversion feature Gatea with our note payable to Ke
Petroleum.

Cash flow from operations was negative for 2007 priecipally to the loss for the year. The effeéthoncash expenses and
change in working capital were a positive $2.7 il
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following chart summarizes our material obligias and commitments to make future payments uoaletracts for longerm dek
as of December 31, 2008:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More

Than 1-3 35 Than5
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Long-term debt, including current maturiti $6,642,85 $543,74! $3,129,73 $510,121 $2,459,24

The presentation of contractual obligations of lb@gn debt includes assumptions regarding our ghiitreplace a construction Ic
with permanent financing.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We consider the following to be our most significagcounting policies. Careful consideration aaediew is given to these and
accounting policies on a routine basis to ensuaettiey are accurately and consistently applied.

Accounts Receivable

We record trade receivables when revenue is rezedniNo product has been consigned to custon@us.allowance for doubtf
accounts is primarily determined by review of sfiedrade receivables. Those accounts that ardtfiduof collection are included in t
allowance. An additional allowance has been eistadd based on a percentage of receivables ouitstan@hese provisions are reviewel
determine the adequacy of the allowance for doulsifgounts. Trade receivables are charged off vthere is certainty as to their be
uncollectible. Trade receivables are considerdidgieent when payment has not been made withinraohterms.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnaiitte and risk of ownership passes to the distob, generally upon shipmel
Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales prickstdbutors, less contractual pricing allowanc&ontractual pricing allowances consis
(i) rebates granted to distributors who providekmag reports which show, among other things, thalify that purchased the products,
(i) a provision for estimated contractual pricialowances for products that we have not receivacking reports. Rebates are recorded \
issued and are applied against the custasmeceivable balance. The provision for contrdqtudaing allowances is reviewed at the end of «
guarter and adjusted for changedeivels of products for which there is no trackiegaert. Additionally, if it becomes clear that tkawy report:
will not be provided by individual distributors,atprovision is further adjusted. The estimatedreatual allowance is netted against indivic
distributors’ accounts receivable balances for financial repgrpnrposes. The resulting net balance is refleatedccounts receivable
accounts payable, as appropriate. The terms anditmns of contractual pricing allowances are goee by contracts between us and
distributors. Revenue for shipments directly td-esers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgasses from us. Any product shippe
distributed for evaluation purposes is expensed.
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Our domestic return policy is set forth in our stard Distribution Agreement. This policy providdsat a customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following artiv the distributoss facility. In all such cases the distributor mabtain an authorizatic
code from us and affix the code to the returnedipcd We will not accept returned goods withouetrned goods authorization number.
may refund the customer’s money or replace theuarod

Our return policy also provides that a customer medyrn product that is overstocked. Overstocketgrns are limited to two times
each 12 month period up to one percent of distoibsittotal purchase of products for the prior 12 magwehiod. All product overstocks a
returns are subject to inspection and acceptanceanufacturer.

Our international Distribution Agreements do natyde for any returns.

We record an allowance for estimated returns &slaation to accounts receivable and gross saléedoritally, returns have been |
than 0.5% of Total sales.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or regriwith cost being determined using a standard meshod, which approximai
average cost. A reserve is established for angssxor obsolete inventories.

Marketing Fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Ablegt, paid marketing fees until we terminated the xamttfor breach. Tt
contracted services were to include participatiopromotional activities, development of educati@aral promotional materials, represents
at trade shows, clinical demonstrations, insergcimd training, and tracking reports detailing gi@cement of our products to enders
Marketing fees were accrued at the time of the shlgroduct to Abbott. These fees were paid aftiebott provided us a tracking report
product sales to enagsers. These costs were included in Sales andetiraglexpense in the Statements of Operationsmbideting fees ha'
been accrued since October 15, 2003, the date dtierfdl Marketing and Distribution Agreement wittbl#ott was terminated. We filed ¢
against Abbott in August 2005 for breach of corttra®/e do not expect the eventual liability for keting fees, if any, to exceed the am«
accrued.

Reimbursed Discounts

We received reimbursed discounts from one of thiesgent agreements reached in our previous federt#tust lawsuitRetractable
Technologies, Inc. v. BD, et al . Payments under the discount reimbursement pmograre recognized upon invoicing of amounts duesuiak
agreement, provided collection was reasonably adsuBuch amounts are presented in the Statemfe@izesations as a separate compone
revenues. All funds available under the discoaimhbursement program were recognized by the thiedtgr of 2006.
Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk.

We believe that our market risk exposures regardimgcash and cash equivalents are immaterial adonsot have instruments

trading purposes. We shifted the bulk of our fuiit® U.S. Treasury bills and other U.S. governmiatked securities in April 200
Additionally, reasonable, possible near-term charigenarket rates or prices will not result in netienear-term losses in earnings.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Retractable Technologies, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheeRetshctable Technologies, Inc. as of December B082and 2007, and the rela
statements of operations, changes in stockhol@epsity, and cash flows for each of the three yaathe period ended December 31, 2(
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale of Retractable Technologies, Inc., listettém 15(a). These financial statements
financial statement schedule are the responsilafithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresgpamon on these financ
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States). Those stand
require that we plan and perform the audit to obt@asonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, onsa basis, evidence supporting the amounts andogdiss in the financial statements.
audit also includes assessing the accounting pitesiused and significant estimates made by maragems well as evaluating the ove
financial statement presentation. We believe thataudits provide a reasonable basis for our opini

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respect® financial position of Retractal
Technologies, Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 28 the results of its operations and its cashdlfor each of the three years in the pe
ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with accagntirinciples generally accepted in the United &dtatf America. Also, in our opinic
the related financial statement schedule when densil in relation to the basic financial stateméaken as a whole, presents fairly in
material respects the information set forth therein

We were not engaged to examine management’s assatiout the effectiveness of the Comparigiternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2008 included in Item 9A of the @amy’s December 31, 2008 Form KOand, accordingly, we do not express an opi
thereon.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texa:
March 31, 200¢



Table of Contents

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2008 2007
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel $ 33,283,74 $ 40,507,43
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $499,966 and $254,008, respecti 3,288,94. 1,667,63!
Inventories, ne 6,641,53. 7,037,12!
Income taxes receivab — 2,345,04.
Other current assets 400,11: 358,80°
Total current assets 43,614,32 51,916,04
Property, plant, and equipment, | 14,435,66 11,483,42
Intangible assets, n 470,11! 424,56(
Other assets 18,75( 505,89¢
Total assets $ 58,538,85 $ 64,329,922
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 6,144,43" $ 5,535,36!
Current portion of lon-term debit 451,86! 387,90¢
Accrued compensatic 650,70« 539,33(
Marketing fees payabl 1,419,761 1,419,76!
Accrued royalties to shareholde 620,98 619,30«
Other accrued liabilitie 949,77( 263,33¢
Current deferred tax liability — 20,62¢
Total current liabilities 10,237,52 8,785,63!
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti 6,095,53! 3,747,25!
Long-term deferred tax liability — 36,20(
Total liabilities 16,333,05 12,569,08'
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred Stock $1 par valt
Class B; authorized: 5,000,000 she
Series |, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares; oulistg: 144,000 and 144,000 shares, respectivelyi¢lation preferenc
of $900,000 and $900,000 respective 144,00( 144,00(
Series Il, Class B; issued: 1,000,000 shares;andstg 219,700 and 219,700, respectively (liquatapreference of
$2,746,250 and $2,746,250, respectiv: 219,70( 219,70(
Series lll, Class B; issued: 1,160,445 sharestautisng: 130,245 and 130,245 shares, respectiliglyidation
preference of $1,628,063 and $1,628,063, respég}i 130,24! 130,24!
Series IV, Class B; issued: 1,133,800 shares; and#étg: 552,500 and 553,500 shares (liquidatiofepeace of
$6,077,500 and $6,088,5C 552,50( 553,50(
Series V, Class B; issued 2,416,221 shares; oulisignl,238,821 and 1,282,471 shares, respect{liglyidation
preference of $5,450,812 and $5,642,872, respég}i 1,238,82. 1,282,47.
Common Stock, no par value; authorized: 100,000db@0es; issued and outstanding: 23,800,064 af®2314 shares,
respectively — —
Additional paic-in capital 53,952,18 53,818,98
Retained deficit (14,031,64) (4,388,061
Total stockholders’ equity 42,205,80 51,760,83
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 58,538,85 $ 64,329,92

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Sales, ne $ 27,899,31 $ 26,289,72 $ 20,897,20
Reimbursed discounts — — 4,427,31.
Total sales 27,899,31 26,289,72 25,324,51
Cost of Sale:
Costs of manufactured prodt 17,504,84 16,212,60 15,684,45
Royalty expense to shareholders 2,168,26:! 2,087,59 2,093,82.
Total cost of sales 19,673,11 18,300,20 17,778,27
Gross profit 8,226,20i 7,989,51! 7,546,24
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 4,835,27. 5,299,15 5,545,50!
Research and developme 1,066,06! 1,071,14. 958,79¢
General and administrative 12,769,77 11,565,14 7,756,64
Total operating expens 18,671,11 17,935,44 14,260,94
Loss from operations (10,444,90) (9,945,92) (6,714,69)
Interest and other incon 855,68! 1,870,51 1,976,401
Interest expense, net (54,359 (326,309 (411,159
Loss before income tax (9,643,58) (8,401,72) (5,149,44))
Benefit for income taxes — (1,453,61) (1,279,96)
Net loss (9,643,58)) (6,948,10) (3,869,48)
Preferred Stock dividend requirements (1,373,01) (1,399,06) (1,451,32)
Net loss applicable to common shareholc $ (11,016,59) $ (8,347,16) $ (5,320,80)
Loss per share $ (0.46) $ (0.35) $ (0.29)
Weighted average common shares outstan 23,794,56' 23,727,02 23,591,99

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance as c
December 31, 200

Conversion o
Preferred Stock
into Common
Stock

Recognition of stocl
option exercist

Recognition of stocl
option
compensatiol

Net loss

Series | Class B

Series Il Class B

Series Ill Class B

Series IV Class B

Series V Class B

Common

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares Amount

171,00(

(7,000)

$171,001(

(7,000)

255,20(

(30,500

$255,201

(30,500)

135,24t

$135,24! 556,00(

— (2,500

$556,001

(2,500)

1,381,22.

(17,500

$1,381,22

(17,500

23,511,88 % —

57,50( —

74,78( —

Balance as ¢
December 31,
2006

Conversion o
Preferred Stock
into Common
Stock

Recognition of stocl
option
compensatiol

Dividends declare
and paid on
Series | Class B
Preferred Stoc

Dividends declare
and paid on
Series Il Class B
Preferred Stoc

Net loss

164,00(

(20,000

164,00(

(20,000

224,70(

(5,000

224,701

(5,000)

135,24t

(5,000)

135,24t 553,50(

(5,000) —

553,50(

1,363,72.

(81,250

1,363,72:

(81,250

23,644,16 —

111,25( —

Balance as c
December 31,
2007

Conversion o
Preferred Stock
into Common
Stock

Recognition of stocl
option
compensatiol

144,00(

144,001

219,70(

219,701

130,24t

130,24! 553,50(

— (1,000

F-6

553,501

(1,000

1,282,47.

(43,65()

1,282,47.

(43,65()

23,755,41. —

44,65( —
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Series | Class B

Series Il Class B

Series Il Class B Series IV Class B Series V Class B

Common

Shares  Amount

Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

Shares Amount

Recognition of
beneficial
conversion featul — —

Net loss — —

Balance as ¢
December 31,
2008 144,000 $144,00!

$130,24! 552,500 $552,501 1,238,82; $1,238,82

23,800,06- $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Additional Retained

Paid-in Earnings

Capital (Deficit) Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 54,307,0¢  $ 6,429,52 63,235,24
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common Si 57,50(C — —
Recognition of stock option exerci 74,78( — 74,78(C
Recognition of stock option compensat 269,77t — 269,77t
Net loss — (3,869,489 (3,869,489
Balance as of December 31, 2( 54,709,10:i 2,560,03¢ 59,710,31.
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common St 111,25( — —
Recognition of stock option compensat 52,17¢ — 52,17:
Dividends declared and paid on Series | Class BeRezl Stock (262,819) — (262,819
Dividends declared and paid on Series |l ClassédPred Stocl (790,72%) — (790,72%)
Net loss — (6,948,10:) (6,948,10:)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 53,818,98 (4,388,06) 51,760,83
Conversion of Preferred Stock into Common Stock 44,65( — —
Recognition of stock option compensation 88,54¢ — 88,54¢
Net loss — (9,643,581 (9,643,58()
Balance as of December 31, 2008 $ 53,952,1¢ $ (14,031,649 42,205,8C

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash byeagperating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Capitalized interes
Stock option compensatic
Provision for inventory valuatio
Provision for doubtful accoun
Accreted interes
Deferred income taxe
(Increase) decrease in ass
Inventories
Accounts receivabl
Income taxes receivab
Other current asse
Other asset
Increase (decrease) in liabilitie
Accounts payabl
Other accrued liabilitie

Net cash used by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipn
Investment in LLC
Acquisitions of patents, trademarks, licenses,iatahgibles

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of lor-term debt and notes payal
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Proceeds from the exercise of stock opti
Payment of Preferred Stock divider

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi

Net decrease in cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of perioc

End of perioc

F-9

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
$ (9.64358)$ (6,948,100 $  (3,869,48)
1,397,33: 1,430,07: 1,426,74¢
(236,96() (177,08¢) (135,857)
32,62¢ 6,47¢ 372,29¢
155,60( (61,29€)

224,63: 169,22: 65,362
54,387 120,48¢ 138,15¢
— — 534,06¢
395,597 (806,94¢) (3,026,75¢)
(1,845,93¢) 119,89; 1,382,79(
2,345,04 10,691 (1,794,670
(41,30€) (91,100) 194,44¢
(12,725) — —
609,07( 1,287,73! 1,902,01¢
798,57¢ 506,38¢ (481,847)
(5,923,24:) (4,216,67:) (3,354,037)
(2,343,55() (464,41¢) (1,530,357)
497,69( (500,000)
(89,15:) (188,16¢) (4,57€)
(1,935,01) (652,58°) (2,034,937)
(489,16() (384,46() (385,06:)
1,123,72¢ — —
— — 74,78(

— (1,053,54) —
634,56 (1,438,00¢) (310,28:)
(7,223,69:) (6,307,25¢) (5,699,24¢)
40,507,43; 46,814,68' 52,513,93!
$ 33,283,74 $ 40507,43 $ 46,814,68
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2008 2007 2006
Supplemental schedule of cash flow informati
Interest paic $ 236,93. $ 382,90: $ 425,42¢
Income taxes pai $ — $ — $ 45,89:
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing andding activities:
Debt assumed to construct a warehc $ 1,72327 $ — $ —

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Business of the Company

Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Compamyds incorporated in Texas on May 9, 1994, and desidevelops, manufactures,
markets safety syringes and other safety medicalymts for the healthcare profession. The Comeggan to develop its manufactur
operations in 1995. The Company’s manufacturindyasministrative facilities are located in Littléni Texas. The Comparg/priman
products with Notice of Substantial Equivalencette FDA are the VanishPoifft 0.5cc insulin syringe; 1cc tuberculin, insulin,
allergy antigen syringes; the 0.5cc, 3cc, 5cc, afdc syringes; the autodisable syringe; the smialindter tube adapter; the blc
collection tube holder; the allergy tray; the IMetg catheter; and the Patient Safe™ syringe.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresp(*GAAP”) requires Manageme
to make estimates and assumptions that affecteperted amounts of assets and liabilities and assce of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeantsl the reported amounts of revenues and expeéusie the reporting period. Actt
results could differ significantly from those eséites.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egsivalents include unrestricted cash, money nax&keounts, and investments v
original maturities of three months or less.

Accounts receivable

The Company records trade receivables when revenvecognized. No product has been consigned stomers. The Compary’
allowance for doubtful accounts is primarily detered by review of specific trade receivables. TEhascounts that are doubtful
collection are included in the allowance. An aiddial allowance has been established based oncamage of receivables outstandi
These provisions are reviewed to determine thewaingof the allowance for doubtful accounts. Tresleivables are charged off wi
there is certainty as to their being uncollectibleade receivables are considered delinquent vpagment has not been made wi
contract terms.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or ragrkvith cost being determined using a standard owthod, which approximal
average cost. A reserve is established for angssxor obsolete inventories.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at déspenditures for maintenance and repairs are eldatg operations as incurred. C
includes major expenditures for improvements aptaments which extend useful lives or increapad#y and interest cost associt
with significant capital additions. For the yeasded December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Comeapitalized interest
approximately $237,000; $177,000; and $136,000in$sar losses from property disposals are includdédcome.

Depreciation and amortization are calculated usiegstraight-line method over the following usdfués:
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Production equipmer 3 to 13 year:
Office furniture and equipme! 3 to 10 year
Buildings 39 years
Building improvement: 15 years
Automobiles 7 years

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses the recoverability of livagh assets using an assessment of the estimatiscounted future cash flows rele
to such assets. In the event that assets are fioubd carried at amounts which are in excess torhated gross future cash flows,
assets will be adjusted for impairment to a lewshmensurate with a discounted cash flow analysieefinderlying assets.

Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform with the current year’s presentation.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and consisiaply of patents, a license agreement grantinglustve rights to use paten
technology, and trademarks which are amortizedgutsia straight-line method over 17 years.

Financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is deteredrby reference to various market data and othieiatian techniques as approprie
The Company believes that the fair values of fim@rinostruments approximates their recorded values.

Concentration risks

The Companys financial instruments exposed to concentratidnsredit risk consist primarily of cash, cash e@lénts, and accoul
receivable. Cash balances, some of which excetidly insured limits, are maintained in finandiatitutions; however, Managem
believes the institutions are of high credit qyaliThe majority of accounts receivable are duenfammpanies which are wedktablishe
entities. As a consequence, Management consiggrexosure from concentrations of credit riskdéolimited. The Company hat
high concentration of sales with one significardétomer. For the year ended December 31, 200&ftiiementioned customer accour
for $4,679,478, or 16.8% of net sales.

Considering the current economic climate, the Campacreased its Provision for doubtful accountsapproximately $246,000 tt
year.

The Company manufactures syringes in Little ElnxaBeas well as utilizing manufacturers in Chindie Tompany purchases most o
product components from single suppliers, includimegdle adhesives and packaging materials. Therenaltiple sources of the
materials. The Company obtains roughly 74.0% fiitished products through Double Dove, a Chimaaeufacturer. In the event t
the Company becomes unable to purchase such prfsdottDouble Dove, the Company would need to findaéternate supplier for
0.5cc insulin syringe, its 5cc and 10cc syringed ié autodisable syringe and increase domestidumtion for 1cc and 3cc syringes
avoid a disruption in supply.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized for sales to distributorsnwtile and risk of ownership passes to the distdb, generally upon shipmel
Revenue is recorded on the basis of sales pridéestabutors, less contractual pricing allowanc&ntractual pricing allowances con
of: (i) rebates granted to distributors who provitacking reports which show, among other thingge facility that purchased t
products, and (ii) a provision for estimated coctmal pricing allowances for products that the Camp has not received track
reports. Rebates are recorded when issued andppleed against the customerfeceivable balance. The provision for contrd
pricing allowances is reviewed at the end of eacartgr and adjusted for changes in levels of prsdfar which there is no tracki
report. Additionally, if it becomes clear that dking reports will not be provided by individualsttibutors, the provision is furtr
adjusted. The estimated contractual allowanceeited against individual distributer’accounts receivable balances for final
reporting purposes. The resulting net balanceefieated in accounts receivable or accounts payasdeappropriate. The terms
conditions of contractual pricing allowances argegoed by contracts between the Company and itshiditors. Revenue for shipme
directly to endusers is recognized when title and risk of owngrgfass from the Company. Any product shipped stributed fo
evaluation purposes is expensed.

The Companys domestic return policy is set forth in its stamgdBistribution Agreement. This policy providestta customer may rett
incorrect shipments within 10 days following arfivat the distributos facility. In all such cases the distributor mudttain al
authorization code from the Company and affix tbdecto the returned product. The Company will aaatept returned goods withot
returned goods authorization number. The Compaay mafund the customer’s money or replace the mdu

The Companys return policy also provides that a customer neyrn product that is overstocked. Overstockirtgrres are limited t
two times in each 12-month period up to one peroédistributor’s total purchase of products foe hrior 12month period. All produ
overstocks and returns are subject to inspectidraaneptance by manufacturer.

The Company’s international distribution agreemelatsiot provide for any returns.

The Company records an allowance for estimatednetas a reduction to Accounts receivable and Grales. Historically, returns he
been less than 0.5% of Total sales.

Marketing fees

Under a sales and marketing agreement with Abbahotatories (“Abbott”),the Company paid marketing fees until the Com
terminated the contract for breach. The contragevices were to include participation in promoéb activities, development
educational and promotional materials, represeantasit trade shows, clinical demonstrations, insémgi and training, and tracki
reports detailing the placement of the Companytipcts to endisers. Marketing fees were accrued at the timbeokale of product
Abbott. These fees were paid after Abbott providleel Company a tracking report of product salegridusers. These costs w
included in Sales and marketing expense in thee®iants of Operations. No marketing fees have beerued since October 15, 2C
the date the National Marketing and Distributionrégment with Abbott was terminated. The Compafledfisuit against Abbott
August 2005 for breach of contract. Abbott filed answer and counterclaim July 15, 2008. See SOBOMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES- Litigation for further discussion.

Reimbursed Discounts
The Company received reimbursed discounts from afnthe settlement agreements reached in its previederal antitrust lawst
Retractable Technologies, Inc. v. Becton Dickinson and Co. (“BD”) et al . Payments under the discount reimbursement pmogvare

recognized upon invoicing of amounts due underatireement provided collection was reasonably adsuseich amounts are presel
in the Statements of
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Operations as a separate component of revenuéguntls available under the discount reimbursenpeogiram were recognized by
third quarter of 2006.

Income taxes

The Company provides for deferred income taxesaoraance with SFAS No. 108¢counting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”). SFAS
109 requires an asset and liability approach foarftial accounting and reporting for income taxased on the tax effects of differen
between the financial statement and tax bases sdtsasand liabilities, based on enacted rates exgpelct be in effect when su
differences reverse in future periods. Deferredassets are periodically reviewed for realizapiliThe Company had sufficient taxa
income from prior carryback years to realize aliteftaxable losses through December 31, 2006.a@ladosses for 2007 and theree
are subject to loss carryforwards. The Companydsiablished a valuation allowance for its net etk tax asset as future taxe
income cannot be reasonably assured. Penaltiemandst on uncertain tax positions are classifisdncome taxes in the Statemen
Operations.

Earnings per share

The Company has adopted SFAS No. 12&nings Per Share , which establishes standards for computing andepting earnings p
share. Basic earnings per share is computed hginijvnet earnings for the period (adjusted for angnulative dividends for the peric
by the weighted average number of common sharetamaling during the period. The Companpbtentially dilutive Common Sto
equivalents, consisting of options, convertibletdsin convertible Preferred Stock, are all anttdikias the Company is in a loss posi
for all periods presented. Accordingly basic lpss share is equal to diluted earnings per shArmual cumulative preferred divider
have been added to net losses for the years englsehiber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 to arrive at sstgder share.

Shipping and handling costs

The Company classifies shipping and handling castsart of Cost of sales in the Statements of Gipesa
Research and development costs

Research and development costs are expensed asthcu

Share-based compensation

On September 26, 2008, the Compamghareholders approved the 2008 Stock Optionddralso approved an Offer to Exchange <
Options (the “Exchange Offer'\vhereby employees, including executive officersg @irectors may exchange certain outstan
underwater options for options issued under theB28@ck Option Plan.Pursuant to th&xchange Offer, eligible participants (total
103) tendered, and the Company accepted for catioal) eligible options to purchase an aggregate 95,365 shares of the Company’
Common Stock representing 99.4% of the total shaff€2ommon Stock underlying options eligible to lkange in the Exchange Offi
The Company issued new options under the 2008 Sdmtlon Plan to purchase an aggregate of 962,6882shof Common Stock
exchange for the cancellation of the tendered apti®ptions issued to employees vest in one yeptios issued to noamploye:
Directors vested immediately.

Prior to 2008, the Company had issued options utitlele stockdased Director, independent contractor and emplopeepensatic
plans as well as several individual option agredmefiwo of these plans and one individual optignreament have terminated and
unissued and unsold stock under these terminatets las been deregistered pursuant to Post-Efestivendment No. 1 to Form &-
Registration Statement, filed December 2, 2008.eadier mentioned, in 2008, the 2008 Stock Opfiten was approved and opti
have been issued under it pursuant to the Exch@ffge.
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The Company’s share-based payments are accountéddocordance with the provisions of SFAS No. {R8vised 2004) SFAS 12
R"), Share-Based Payment , using the fair value method. The Company recehdge-based compensation expense on a stitaighiasi
over the requisite service period. docordance with the disclosure requirements of SNASL23 R, the Company incurred the follow
share-based compensation costs:

Years ended December 3!

2008 2007 2006
Cost of sale: $ 2,799 % 6,64¢ $ 67,56
Sales and marketir (2,15¢6) 3,08¢ 101,60¢
Research and developmt (281) (7,867%) 12,41¢
General and administrative 36,86: 4,607 190,71:
$ 32,62¢ $ 6,47¢ $ 372,29¢

Options awarded to employees are amortized ovelvéwmaonths. The Company amortized one man#Xpense in the fourth quar
Non-employee Directorsbption expense was all expensed in the fourth quaithe Company recognized a credit for the caec
options in the fourth quarter, resulting in a netdit to stock option expense for employees of $7.,6

Recent Pronouncements

In April 2008, the Financial Accounting StandardsaBd (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) BAL42-3, “Determination of
the Useful Life of Intangible Assets ”. This FSP amends the factors that should be corsider developing renewal or extens
assumptions used to determine the useful life odécmgnized intangible asset under FASB Statementli®, “ Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets ” (“SFAS 142”). The intent of this FSP is to improve the consisyemetween the useful life of a recognized intarg
asset under SFAS 142 and the period of expectdd ftmss used to measure the fair value of the agsder SFAS 141R, and otl
GAAP. This FSP is effective for financial staterteeissued for fiscal years and interim periods ieigig after December 15, 20(
Early adoption of the standard is prohibited. FI2-3 is effective on January 1, 2009. We are curyesthluating the impact of F/
142-3, and have not yet determined the impactnyf, @ahat the adoption of FSP FAS 142-3 will havetba Companys financia
statements.

3. INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following:

Year ended December 31

2008 2007
Raw materials $ 1,885,1! $ 1,743,9!
Finished good 4,961,97! 5,498,73!
6,847,13. 7,242,772
Inventory reservi (205,600 (205,600
$ 6,641,5: $ 7,037,1.
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4.

5.

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment consist of the foihg :

December 31

2008 2007

Land $ 261,89: $ 261,89:
Buildings and building improvemen 5,319,73: 5,314,72!
Production equipmet 14,270,57 14,169,90:
Office furniture and equipme! 1,825,78: 1,729,19¢
Construction in progres 6,287,50: 2,185,97¢
Automobiles 102,32 102,32
28,067,80 23,764,011

Accumulated depreciation and amortization (13,632,14) (12,280,59)
$ 14,435,66 $ 11,483,42

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decembhe@088, 2007, and 2006 was $1,351,547; $1,370228%$1,380,047, respectively.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31

2008 2007
License agreeme! $ 500,00( $ 500,00(
Trademarks and patents 508,74 419,59
1,008,74: 919,59
Accumulated amortization (538,62¢) (495,03)
$ 470,11! $ 424,561

In 1995, the Company entered into a license agreemvéh the Chief Executive Officer of the Compafor the exclusive right
manufacture, market, and distribute products uniizautomated retraction technology. This liceageeement was amended July 3, 2
to include certain additional patent applicatiomsed by such officer in the definition of “Patenbperties”so that such additional pat
applications would be covered by the license. Téahnology is the subject of various patents aatgt applications owned by si
officer of the Company. The initial licensing feE$500,000 is being amortized over 17 years. [idense agreement also provides
quarterly payments of a 5% royalty fee on grosessallhe royalty fee expense is recognized in #x®@ in which it is earned. Roya
fees of $2,168,268; $2,087,596; and $2,093,822rmtaded in Cost of sales for the years ended Déeerdl, 2008, 2007, and 20
respectively. Royalties payable under this agre®raggregated $620,987 and $619,304 at Decemb@088, and 2007, respective
Gross sales upon which royalties are based wer@83361; $41,751,897; and $42,026,447 for 20087 28nd 2006, respectively.

Amortization expense for the years ended Decembe?@08, 2007, and 2006, was $43,597; $43,454$44¢657, respectively. Futt
amortization expense for the years 2009 throug!8 2@lestimated to be $53,000 per year.

OTHER ASSETS

In 2006, the Company invested $500,000 in a limitedility company. The Company exercised its optto have that investme
returned. The investment was returned in April&00
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7.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:
Note payable to Katie Petroleum. Interest accrateprime plus 1%, which was 5.0% and 8.50%

December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Inteyelst was payable monthly through Februar
2004. The original amount of the note of $3,000,0xs discounted for presentation purpose
$299,346 for stock options issued in conjunctiothwfie debt and $412,500 for the intrinsic valu
a beneficial conversion feature of the debt. Beigip March 1, 2004, the loan is payable in e
installments of principal and interest paymentscégt for changes in the interest rate)
approximately $37,000 and matures on SeptemberZiL2. Guaranteed by an offic
Approximately $163,736 of the principal payment wasverted into 40,934 shares of Comi
Stock as of March 1, 2006. Not otherwise colldieed. Convertible into Common Stock at $4
per share at the option of the holc

Note payable to 1st International Bank for $2,500,0The proceeds from the loan paid off the reing

$475,000 of a revolving credit agreement and fundedvarehouse and related infrastructi
Payments were interest only during the first 12 then After 12 months, payments are based
20-year amortization with a fiveear maturity on March 29, 2010. The interest edtBecember 3
2008 and 2007 was 4.25% and 7.50%, respectivaly,i@based on the amount of funds kep
deposit with the bank. Accordingly, interest wiliry from the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate
“WSJPR") to the WSJPR plus 1%, with floors that magge from 4.25% to 6.50%Compensatin
balances at 1st International affecting the interat® will range from $0 to $500,000. The Comg
had in excess of $500,000 on deposit with 1st hatgonal Bank throughout the year. The noi
secured by the Compa’s land and buildings

Note payable to DaimlerChrysler Services North AnegetLC. Sixty (60) monthly payments at $1,0

Interest is 5.49%. Collateralized by a 2005 Friigér truck.

Note payable to GMAC. Sixty (60) monthly paymeats$427. Interest is zero percent. Collatera

by a 2005 Chevrolet va

Construction line of credit from Lewisville Stateafk, a division of 1st International Bank fo

maximum of $4,210,000, which provided funding fbe texpansion of the warehouse, additi
office space, and a new Controlled Environmente Tiote bears interest at WSJPR plus 0.2
Payments are interest only and the line of creditumres in February 2010. The line of cred
secured by the Comparsyland and buildings. The Company has obtainedhi@mt to refinance th
line of credit with Lewisville State Bank. Terms thfe refinanced loan are expected to be prin
and interest payments of approximately $35,000 dasea 21 year amortization and maturing it
years.

Less: current portion

December 31

2008 2007
$ 143797 $ 1,735,39:
2,241,14! 2,362,85:
12,711 23,79
8,561 13,12¢
2,847,00¢ —
6,547,40( 4,135,16!
(451,865 (387,900
$ 6,09553! $ 3,747,25¢

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt as afdbéer 31, 2008, are as follows:

2009 $ 451,86!
2010 5,365,56:
2011 403,687
2012 326,28t
2013 —
Thereafter —

$ 6,547,40!
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8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

On August 12, 2005, the Company filed a lawsuitirrgfaAbbott in the United States District Courttiee Eastern District of Tex:
Texarkana Division. The Company is alleging fraumdi breach of contract in connection with the NaldMarketing and Distributic
Agreement dated as of May 4, 2000, which was teaitathon October 15, 2003. The Company is seelkangades which it estimates

be in millions of dollars of lost profits, out obpket expenses, and other damages. In additierCtimpany is seeking punitive dama
pre- and post-judgment interest, and attorney’s.fdeollowing Abbotts unsuccessful attempt to get the case dismisstdraered t
arbitration, Abbott filed an answer and counteralain July 15, 2008, alleging several breaches ofraot, breach of implied warranty
merchantability, and breach of express warrantgkisg in excess of $6,000,000 in compensatory dasag well as seeking attorneys’
fees. The Company denies the validity of Ablsottounterclaims. Some discovery has already tgkace (related to the hearit
addressing the prior motion to compel arbitratianyl additional discovery is underway. The DistGaurt has issued a scheduling o
calling for trial in January 2010.

In August 2006, the Company was sued by OccupdtamMedical Innovations Limited (“OMI”in Federal Court of Australia, allegi
that two letters written to OMI by outside counsehtained unjustified threats of patent infringemént seeking no damages. OMI |i
amended its complaint to seek a declaratory judgrtieet OMI does not infringe Australian Patent M01878, again seeking
damages. Following a orday trial in June 2007, the Court held that ontheftwo letters written by outside counsel contdiaghreat ¢
patent infringement, and awarded costs to OMI.ldwohg a oneday trial in June 2008, the Court issued a dedayajudgment i
August 2008 stating that OMI’syringe does not infringe the Australian patent#01878 but also awarding costs to the Compdrhe
Company and OMI subsequently agreed that each pdttyear its own costs, and the matter was sg¢itteOctober 2008.

In April 2008, the Company sued OMI in the Unite@t8s District Court for the Eastern District ofX@s, Tyler Division, alleging th
OMI has infringed two U.S. patents that are ndsstie in the Australian litigation (6,572,584 an854,224). The Company also alle
theft of confidential information, intentional imference with contracts and engaging in false dibieg that wrongfully disparages ¢
mischaracterizes the Compasysyringe products. The Company further allegas @MI made false allegations regarding the soof
origin of its safety syringe products being offeredhe U.S. The Company seeks injunctive relieéEpecified damages (including tre
damages) and reimbursement of attorneys fees iauite OMI has counterclaimed against the Compaagking declaratory judgme
of nondinfringement and invalidity of the asserted pater@®MI is not seeking monetary damages. Trialeisfer December 2009 a
discovery is ongoing.

In June 2007, the Company sued Becton DickinsonGardpany (“BD”)in the United States District Court for the EastBistrict of
Texas, Marshall Division, alleging infringementtbfee patents (5,578,011; 5,632,733; and 6,09087d violations by BD of the fede
and state antitrust laws, and of the Lanham Adte Tompany subsequently dropped the 5,578,011 tpaitegations from the lawsu
The Company and an officer, a ptintiff, are seeking injunctive relief, unspeeii monetary damages and reimbursement of attc
fees in the suit. BD counterclaimed for niafringement and invalidity of the asserted patents January 2008, the Court severec
patent claims from the other claims pending regmhubf the patent dispute, which is set for trial@ctober 2009. In April 2008, t
Company and that same officer sued BD in the Un8tades District Court for the Eastern DistrictT@éxas, Marshall Division, allegil
infringement of another recently issued patent§¥,324), and seeking injunctive relief, unspecifiednetary damages (including tre
damages) and reimbursement of attorneys fees. @terclaimed for nomfringement and invalidity of the asserted pateifite
Company and officer moved to consolidate this aaitle the other patent case against BD that was ipgnd Marshall and the Cot
granted the Company’s motion, consolidating thisecavith the abovetated case filed in June 2007. The Court isstedlair
construction order in this matter on January 49200
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In September 2007, BD and MDC Investment Holdimgs, (“MDC”) sued the Company in the United States District Céur the
Eastern District of Texas, Texarkana Division,ially alleging that the Company is infringing twa3J patents of MDC (6,179,812 ¢
7,090,656) that are licensed to BD. BD and MDC sginctive relief and unspecified damages. Then@any counterclaimed f{
declarations of nomfringement, invalidity and unenforceability ofettasserted patents. The plaintiffs subsequentppdrd allegatior
with regard to patent no. 7,090,656 and the Compgaimwgequently dropped its counterclaims for uneefability of the asserted pater
The Court conducted a claims construction hearimgSeptember 25, 2008 and issued its claims cotigtnuorder on November 1
2008. No trial date has been set.

In March 2008, MedSafe Technologies LLC (“MedSafieijially sued the Company and BD in the Unitedt&saDistrict Court for tt
District of South Carolina, Greenville Divisionleging infringement of a MedSafe patent (6,074,330 seeking injunctive relief a
unspecified monetary damages. The Company cousiteied for declarations of nanfringement, invalidity, and unenforceability dfe
asserted patent. BD subsequently settled with MEd SEffective December 22, 2008, the Companylvedaits litigation with MedSal
by entering into a PATENT LICENSE/ASSIGNMENT AND $ELEMENT AGREEMENT with MedSafe and Syringe Devetogn
Partners, LLC; William B.S. Pressly, Sr.; Charle&/Aughn, Sr.; G. Samuel Brockway; and Thomas Rs Edbllectively, the MedSafi
Plaintiffs”) (the “MedSafe Settlement Agreementhe MedSafe Settlement Agreement ends the pati&ittgament litigation betwes
the Company and MedSafe.

In September 2008, the Company and an officer Safdty Medical International (“SMI”")n the United States District Court for
Eastern District of Texas, Tyler Division, allegiirgringement of U.S. patent nos. 6,572,584 an®¥,24 and seeking injunctive rel
unspecified monetary damages and reimbursemeritashays fees. SMI has counterclaimed againsCiiapany, seeking declarat
judgments of norRfringement and invalidity of the asserted paterB$/l is not seeking monetary damages. No trédé chas been ¢
and discovery has not yet commenced.

9. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes consists of theofelhg:

For the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Current tax provision (benefi
Federal $ —  $ (143,459 $ (1,696,31)
State — (1,310,159 (117,709
Total current provision (benefi — (1,453,61) (1,814,02)
Deferred tax provision (benefi
Federal — — 458,23:
State — — 75,83¢
Total deferred tax provision (benefit) — — 534,06¢
Total income tax provision (benef $ — % (1,453,61) $ (1,279,96)

The Company recognized a tax benefit in 2007 piilgnaiue to the net effect of a state tax refund poior years that had not be
previously recognized.

Deferred taxes are provided for those items refddrtadifferent periods for income tax and finanaigporting purposes. The tax effe
of temporary differences that give rise to sigrifit portions of the deferred tax assets and lt&slare presented below:

The Company has $13,935,832 in tax benefits atalile to carry back losses for federal tax purpoSé® loss carryforwards will beg
to expire in 2027 for federal tax purposes and belyin to expire for state tax purposes in 2012.
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December 31

2008 2007
Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 5,285,16. $ 1,871,31
Accrued expenses and reser 1,261,16! 1,204,16!
Employee option expen: 31,66¢ 484,21
Inventory 435,57¢ 402,40¢
Non-employee option expen: 198,42! 313,55’
Deferred tax assets 7,212,00 4,275,65!
Deferred tax liabilities
Property and equipme (1,178,61) (1,341,29)
Beneficial conversion feature of de- current — (20,62¢)
Beneficial conversion feature of de- long term — (36,200
Deferred tax liabilities (1,178,61) (1,398,119
Net deferred asse 6,033,38! 2,877,53.
Valuation allowance (6,033,38) (2,934,35)
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ — $ (56,826

A reconciliation of income taxes based on the febstatutory rate and the provision (benefit) foxdme taxes is summarized as follows:

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory (35.00% (35.00% (35.00%
State tax (benefit), net of federal (bene (2.9 (2.9) (2.9
Increase (decrease) in valuation allowa 32.1 27.2 10.7
Permanent difference 0.4 1.0 4.0
Cancellation of options under Exchange O 5.4 — —
State tax refun — (12.0) —
Return to accrual adjustmer — 3.2 —
Other — 1.2 1.7

Effective tax (benefit) rate —% (17.3% (24.99%

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standardar8q“FASB”) issued Financial Interpretation No., 4&counting for Income Tax
Uncertainties (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 is effective for years beginning after Deteml5, 2006. FIN 48 prescribes a recognitionsthoéd an
measurement attribute for financial statement reitimgn and measurement of a tax position takenxpeeted to be taken in a tax retu
FIN 48 requires that a company evaluate whethsr‘inore-likely-than-not'that a tax position will be sustained based upenélchnice
merits of the position. Measurement of the taxtpmsis based upon the largest amount of benledit is greater than 50% likely of be
realized upon ultimate settlement. The CompanytabFIN 48 on January 1, 2007. FIN 48 had no rizteffect on the financi
statements upon adoption. During 2007, the Compaserved approximately $100,000 for state nexsges During 2008, t
Company also recorded a state tax receivable abappately $100,000 attributable to amended returns

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and in various state and locaisdictions. The Company‘federe
income tax returns for all tax years ended on tardbecember 31, 2005, remain subject to examindtjothe Internal Revenue Servi
The Companys state and local income tax returns are subjeeémination by the respective state and localaitids over variot
statutes of limitations, most ranging from thredive years from the date of filing.

10. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred Stock
The Company has one class of Preferred Stock odlisigi Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (“CIBsStock”). The Class B Sto«

has five series: Series |, Series |l, SeriesS#ies |V, and Series V.
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Class B

The Company has authorized 5,000,000 shares oafstgue Class B Stock which have been allocateshgnseries I, I, I, IV, and
in the amounts of 144,000; 219,700; 130,245; 592,50d 1,238,821 shares, respectively. The remgifi714,734 authorized she
have not been assigned a series.

Series | Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Se@ésss B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series 4$3IB Stock”jssued and 144,0
outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respécti Holders of Series | Class B Stock are esditio receive a cumulative ann
dividend of $.50 per share, payable quarterly dlaeed by the Board of Directors. In 2004, the @any paid $2,550,000 in dividenc
In 2007, the Company paid $262,819 in dividends$.DAcember 31, 2008 and 2007 approximately $108z0@0$36,000, respective
of dividends which had not been declared wererieaas.

Series | Class B Stock is redeemable after thraesyfeom the date of issuance at the option ofbmpany at a price of $7.50 per sh
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbh&®eries | Class B Stock may, at the option of stezkholder, be converted to «
share of Common Stock after three years from the otissuance or in the event the Company filemgial registration statement unt
the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant to thesedenmo shares of Series | Class B Stock were cazvénto Common Stock in 2008.
the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutidiquidation or winding up of the Company, holders Series | Class B Stock th
outstanding are entitled to $6.25 per share, gluscarued and unpaid dividends prior to any dsttions to holders of Series Il Clas
Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series Il Class Bcgtp Series Il Class B Convertible Preferred &tdtSeries Ill Class B Stock)
Series IV Class B Convertible Preferred Stock (&=l Class B Stock”), Series V Class B Convedilitreferred Stock $eries \
Class B Stock”) or Common Stock.

Series |l Class B

There were 1,000,000 shares of $1 par value Skrg&lass B Stock issued and there were 219 3lres outstanding at Decembel
2008 and 2007. Holders of Series Il Class B Stawk entitled to receive a cumulative annual divilef $1.00 per share, paya
quarterly if declared by the Board of Directorsoldters of Series Il Class B Stock generally havevoting rights until dividends are
arrears and unpaid for twelve consecutive quartersuch case, the holders of Series Il Classd@lShave the right to elect otieird of
the Board of Directors of the Company. In 2004 @ompany paid $4.6 million in dividends. In 20@¥e Company paid $790,72E
dividends. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, approximately $3B1.8nd $111,000, respectively, of dividends whietdl mot bee
declared were in arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgsyfrom the date of issuance at the option ofCbmpany at a price of $15.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhehe of Series Il Class B Stock may, at the optibtine stockholder, be convertec
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toghesms, no shares of Series Il Class B Stock wereerted into Common Stock
2008. In the event of voluntary or involuntarysdikition, liquidation or winding up of the Compatglders of Series Il Class B St
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shims, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to holders of Serie
Class B Stock have been satisfied and prior todistyibutions to holders of Series Ill Class B $toSeries IV Class B Stock, Serie
Class B Stock or Common Stock.

Series 1l Class B
There were 1,160,445 shares of $1 par value Siri€ass B Stock issued and 130,245 shares outsigrat December 31, 2008 ¢

2007, respectively. Holders of Series Il ClasSt®ck are entitled to receive a cumulative annixatlend of $1.00 per share, paye
quarterly if declared by the Board of Directorst A
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December 31, 2008 and 2007, approximately $3,107a0@ $2,985,000, respectively, of dividends wliiiakie not been declared wer
arrears.

Series Il Class B Stock is redeemable after tlyesrs from the date of issuance at the option ®Gbmpany at a price of $15.00
share, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Bhahe of Series Ill Class B Stock may, at theooptif the stockholder, be converte:
one share of Common Stock after three years fra@ardéte of issuance or in the event the Company éiteinitial registration statem:
under the Securities Act of 1933. Pursuant toghtesms, nshares of Series Il Class B Stock were conveménl Common Stock
2008. In the event of voluntary or involuntary dissolutjdiquidation or winding up of the Company, holdlef Series Ill Class B Sto
then outstanding are entitled to $12.50 per shaus, all accrued and unpaid dividends, after distion obligations to Series | Clas
Stock and Series Il Class B Stock have been sadisfind prior to any distributions to holders ofi&etV Class B Stock, Series V Clas
Stock or Common Stock.

Series IV Class B

There were 1,133,800 shares issued and 552,5085%800 shares outstanding at December 31, 2002@0W respectively. Holders
Series IV Class B Stock are entitled to receiverawative annual dividend of $1.00 per share, pkygbarterly, if declared by the Boi
of Directors. Holders of Series IV Class B Stodnegrally have no voting rights. At December 31082@&nd 2007, approximatt
$7,030,000 and $6,478,000, respectively, of dividerwhich have not been declared were in arrears.

Series IV Class B Stock is redeemable after thesgs/from the date of issuance at the option ofbpany at a price of $11.00
share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Eheare of Series IV Class B Stock may, at the optibthe stockholder any tir
subsequent to three years from date of issuanagrbeerted into one share of Common Stock, or énetfent the Company files an ini
registration statement under the Securities Ad383. Pursuant to these terms, 1,80@res of Series IV Class B Stock were conv
into Common Stock in 2008. In the event of voluptar involuntary liquidation, dissolution or windj up of the Company, holders
Series IV Class B Stock then outstanding are edtitb receive liquidating distributions of $11.0€r ghare, plus accrued and un,
dividends after distribution obligations to SeriéSlass B Stock, Series Il Class B Stock, and SdtleClass B Stock have been satis
and prior to any distribution to holders of SeNe€lass B Stock or Common Stock.

Series V Class B

There were 2,416,221 shares issued and 1,238,8P1,282,471 outstanding at December 31, 2008 afd,2@spectively. Holders
Series V Class B Stock are entitled to receiverautative annual dividend of $0.32 per share, payapilarterly, if declared by the Bo.
of Directors. Holders of Series V Class B Stockeyally have no voting rights. At December 31, @hd 2007, approximate
$3,297,000 and $2,898,000, respectively, of dividerwhich have not been declared were in arrears.

Series V Class B Stock is redeemable after twosyram the date of issuance at the option of then@my at a price of $4.40 per st
plus all accrued and unpaid dividends. Each sbi8eries V Class B Stock may, at the option ofdteekholder any time subsequer
the date of issuance, be converted into CommorkStBarsuant to the terms of the certificate ofiglestion, 43,650 shares of Serie
Class B Stock were converted into Common Stock0id82 In the event of voluntary or involuntary lidation, dissolution, or windir
up of the Company, holders of Series V Class BISthen outstanding are entitled to receive liquiatdistributions of $4.40 per she
plus accrued and unpaid dividends after distributibligations to Series | Class B Stock, Serigdldiss B Stock, Series Ill Class B St¢
and Series IV Class B Stock have been satisfiecpandto any distribution to the holders of ther@mon Stock.

Common stock
The Company is authorized to issue 100,000,00Cesh&rno par value Common Stock, of which 23,8008&d 23,755,414 shares w
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 2&pectively.
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11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had a lease with Mill Street Entergrig#lill Street”), a sole proprietorship owned by a person, who cetisbe a 10¢
shareholder in 2008, for offices and storage in isgile, Texas. During the years ended Decembe2807 and 2006, the Comp:
paid $14,500 and $34,800, respectively, underdlise. This lease term expired in June 2007.

The Company paid MediTrade International Corporataocompany controlled by a person, who ceasée ® 10% shareholder in 2(
on a month-to-month consulting agreement wherebyliftade is paid $7,500 per month plus expensekotal amounts paid
MediTrade for the years ending December 31, 20087 2and 2006 totaled $98,401; $129,618; and $3]1/@8pectively.

The Company has a license agreement with the Exiefutive Officer of the Company. See Note 5.

During the years ended December 31, 2008, 200728606, the Company paid $40,191; $30,397; and $24 fespectively, to fami
members of its Chief Executive Officer for variczensulting services.

12. STOCK OPTIONS
Stock options

Prior to 2008, the Company had three stock optiangthat provided for the granting of stock opsida officers, employees, and ot
individuals. Two of those plans have terminat&d2008 Stock Option Plan was approved for the gngnof stock options to employe
Directors, and consultants. During 1999, the Campapproved the 1999 Stock Option Plan. The 1988 Bnd 2008 Plan are the ¢
plans with stock options currently being awarddthe Company has reserved an aggregate 7,000,008ssbiCommon Stock f
issuance upon the exercise of options under thass.pVe do not intend to issue any options urfiel®99 Stock Option Plan.

On September 26, 2008, the Compamghareholders approved the Exchange Offer whereipjoyees, including executive officers,
Directors may exchange certain outstanding undema@tions for options issued under the 2008 Stpkion Plan. Pursuant to tt
Exchange Offer, eligible participants (totaling 1@ndered, and the Company accepted for canael|agiligible options to purchase
aggregate of 1,925,365 shares of the Compa@gmmon Stock representing 99.4% of the totaleshaf Common Stock underlyi
options eligible to exchange in the Exchange OffEhe Company issued new options under the 2008&Sdption Plan to purchase
aggregate of 962,683 shares of Common Stock inaggehfor the cancellation of the tendered optiddptions issued to employees \
in one year. Options issued to non-employee Dirsotested immediately.

The Company also had options for common sharegamalisig under the 1996 Incentive Stock Option Rlad the 1996 Stock Opti
Plan for Directors and Other Individuals throughvRimber 2008. The two 1996 plans and all optiossdd thereunder have terming
or have been exchanged for options granted unde2@88 Plan.

A committee of independent Directors appointed iy Board of Directors administers all plans ancdmamends to the Board exerc
prices at which options are granted. Shares isaped exercise of options come from the Compsuayithorized but unissued Comr
Stock. The options vest over periods up to threary from the date of grant and generally expireytears after the date of gra
Unvested options issued under the 2008 Stock Optian expire immediately after termination of enyphent.
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Employee options
A summary of Director, officer, and employee opigranted and outstanding under the Plans is pgeztérlow:

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning
of period 2,187,45! $ 8.8C 2,417,29! $ 8.5¢ 2,495,12! $ 8.3¢
Grantec 962,68: 1.3C — — — —
Exercisec — — — — (49,780 (2.00
Forfeited (2,092,87) (8.79) (229,840 (6.50) (28,050) (4.47)
Outstanding at end «
period 1,057,26. $ 1.9¢ 2,187,45! $ 8.8C 2,417,29" $ 8.5¢
Exercisable at end of
period 147,58( $ 6.2t 2,187,45! % 8.8( 2,325,771 $ 8.57
Weighted average fair
value of options
granted during perio $ 0.7¢ $ — $ —

The fair value of each 2008 option grant is estadabtn the date of grant using the binomial opticnipg model with the followin
weighted average assumptions used for grants iB8:20® dividend yield; expected volatility of 67.p&rcent; risk free interest rate
2.83 percent; and an expected life of 8.61 to §&&s. The options were issued under the 2008 SIpdion Plan. No options we
issued in 2007 or 2006.

The following table summarizes information aboutdgtor, officer, and employee options outstandingar the aforementioned plan:
December 31, 2008:

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$ 10.0C 58,50( 0.8¢ 58,50(
$ 6.9C 15,08( 3.7¢ 15,08(
$ 8.65 4,70( 4.4¢ 4,70(
$ 7.5C 15,00( 0.3¢ 15,00(
$ 8.87 1,30(¢ 5.3¢ 1,30
$ 1.3C 962,68 9.8¢ 53,00(

The Company recorded $98,473 (offset by a credi$@B,844 for surrendered stock options); $6,478 $872,298 as stodbase:
compensation expense in 2008, 2007, and 2006, aaglg. The total intrinsic value of options egied was $0; $0; and $207,92:
2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. The aggremutimsic value of options outstanding at Decentier 2008 was $0. The to
compensation cost related to non-vested stock mptim be recognized in the future was $635,511eaehber 31, 2008.
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Non-employee options

A summary of options outstanding during the yeaideel December 31 and held by non-employees idlas/fo

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning

of period 549,70 $ 8.6¢ 579,70 $  8.5( 607,20 $ 8.1¢
Grantec — — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — (25,000 (2.00
Forfeited (95,000 (10.00) (30,000 (5.00 (2,500 (1.00

Outstanding at end «

period 454,700 $ 8.41 549,70 $  8.6¢ 579,70 $ 8.5(
Exercisable at end of

period 454,70C $ 8.41 549,70( $  8.6¢ 579,70 $ 8.5
Weighted average fair

value of options

granted during perio $ — $ — $ —

No options were issued in 2008, 2007 or 2006.

The following table summarizes information aboutmmployee options outstanding under the aforemestigrians at December !

2008:
Weighted
Average
Remaining
Exercise Shares Contractual Shares
Prices Outstanding Life Exercisable
$10.0( 222,20( 1.1€ 222,20(
$6.9( 232,50( 3.7¢ 232,50(

13. LITIGATION SETTLEMENTS

Effective December 22, 2008, the Company resolteditigation with MedSafe by entering into a PATENICENSE/ASSIGNMEN"
AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT with MedSafe and Syringee®@®lopment Partners, LLC; William B.S. Pressly; $tharles /
Vaughn, Sr.; G. Samuel Brockway; and Thomas Rs Edlollectively, the “MedSafe Plaintiffs”) (the “M&afe Settlement Agreemeht”
This MedSafe Settlement

F-25



Table of Contents
Agreement ends the patent infringement litigatietween the Company and MedSafe.

14. 401(k) PLAN
The Company implemented an employee savings aindmemnt plan (the “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that iseinded to be a tagualified plal
covering substantially all employees. Under thente of the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect to rdmrte up to 90% of the
compensation, or the statutory prescribed limiless. The Company may, at its discretion, matshleyee contributions. The Comp:
made matching contributions of approximately $120;3%111,000; and $0 in 2008, 2007, and 2006, ctis@edy.

15. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

2008 2007 2006
Domestic sales $ 2324437 $ 21,461,711 $ 22,240,34
International sale 4,654,94: 4,828,00: 3,084,17.
Total sales $ 27,89931 $ 26,289,72 $ 25,324,51
Long-lived asset:
Domestic $ 14,43566 $ 11,483,42 $ 12,212,14
Foreign $ — — $ —

The Company does not operate in separate repogaftaents. The Company has no ltingd assets in foreign countries. Shipmen
international customers generally require a pregayreither by wire transfer or an irrevocable conéd letter of credit. The Compe
does extend credit to international customers anesoccasions depending upon certain criteria, dhiofy but not limited to, the cre
worthiness of the customer, the stability of thamtoy, banking restrictions, and the size of thaeor All transactions are in United Sta
currency.

SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA - UNAUDITED
The selected quarterly financial data for the pisi@nded December 31, 2008 and 2007, have beevededrom the Company’
unaudited financial statements and include all stdjents, consisting only of normal recurring adjumits, necessary for a 1

presentation of the results of the interim periods.

(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2008
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Sales, net $ 531t $ 6,47 $ 8,997 $ 7,11z
Cost of sale: 4,02¢ 3,49¢ 6,871 5,27¢
Gross profit 1,28¢ 2,97¢ 2,12¢ 1,83¢
Total operating expens: 4,362 4,02¢ 4,30¢€ 5,97¢
Loss from operations (3,076 (1,052) (2,180 (4,137
Interest and other incon 254 241 15¢ 20z
Interest expense, net (41) (22) (14) 23
Net loss (2,867) (833) (2,03 (3,917
Preferred stock dividend requireme (34%) (343) (343) (342)
Loss applicable to common shareholders $ (3,209 $ (1,17¢) $ (2,379 $ (4,259
Net loss per shai- basic and diluted $ (0.19) $ (0.05) $ (0.10 $ (0.1¢)
Weighted average shares outstanding 23,778,07 23,800,06 23,800,06 23,800,06
Profit margin 24.2% 46.0% 23.6% 25.8%
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(In thousands, except for per share and outstandingtock amounts)

2007
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Sales, net $ 577¢ $ 527 % 8,04C $ 7,201
Cost of sale: 4,51¢ 3,132 5,851 4,801
Gross profit 1,26( 2,14z 2,18 2,40(
Total operating expenses 4,00( 4,101 4,61¢ 5,21¢
Loss from operation (2,740 (1,959%) (2,429 (2,819
Interest incomt 541 44¢ 521 36C
Interest expense, n (77 (94) (86) (69)
Loss before income taxes (2,27¢) (1,604 (1,999 (2,52¢)
Benefit for income taxe — — (1,406 (48)
Net loss (2,27¢) (1,609 (58¢) (2,48()
Preferred stock dividend requireme (355) (349 (34%) (347)
Net loss applicable to common shareholc $ (2,63) $ (1,959 $ (93€) $ (2,827%)
Net loss per shai- basic and diluted $ (0.11) $ (0.08) $ (0.09 $ (0.12)
Weighted average shares outstanding 23,677,64 23,731,66 23,745,20 23,754,58

Profit margin 21.8% 40.6% 27.2% 33.3%
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Pursuant to paragraph (b) of Rule 13a-15 or Rute1% of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (thecliange Act”)and ol
March 30, 2009, Management, with the participatidrour President, Chairman, and Chief Executivedeff Thomas J. Shaw (the “CER”
and our Vice President and Chief Financial Offid@ouglas W. Cowan (the “CFO”"gcting in their capacities as our principal exe@itn
financial officers, evaluated the effectivenessoof disclosure controls and procedures, as defiméglule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15b(e). Th
CEO and CFO concluded, as of December 31, 2008eftHeof the period covered by the report), basetherevaluation of these controls
procedures required by paragraph (b) of Rule 13ar1Rule 15d15 that our disclosure controls and procedureseffextive to ensure th
information required to be disclosed in our pergodiports is recorded, processed, summarized gudteel within the time periods specifiec
the SEC’s rules and forms.

Managemeris Annual Report on Internal Control over Finan&eabporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over our finaheeporting as defined
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Management used thisternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committ
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Comimisg“COSO”) to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal adntiver financie
reporting as required by paragraph (c) of Rule 13&r Rule 15dt5. Management, with the participation of our C&@ CFO, concluded tt
our internal control over financial reporting as Décember 31, 2008, was effective. No materialkmeases in our internal control o
financial reporting were identified by Management.

This annual report does not include an attestateport of our registered public accounting firm astjng internal control ov
financial reporting. Managemestieport was not subject to attestation by oursteged public accounting firm pursuant to temporaigs o
the Securities and Exchange Commission that persnid provide only Management's report in this amaport.

Our management, including the CEO and CFO, doesxpmct that our disclosure controls and procedoresir internal control ov
financial reporting will prevent or detect all erscand all instances of fraud. A control systemmatter how well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assuraratétth control system’s objectives will be met.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repaortin

There have been no changes during the fourth quafte008 or subsequent to December 31, 2008, mimternal control ove
financial reporting or in any other factor that maaterially affected or is reasonably likely to evélly affect our internal control over financ
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

We will hold our annual meeting on September 282 @t the Little ElIm City Hall; 100 West EldoraBarkway; Little EIm, Texa
75068. Beginning this year, we will provide prodigclosures to our shareholders utilizing the netice and access method. Accordin
shareholders will no longer receive a Proxy Statgna@d proxy card in the mail. Instead they wilteive a short one page notice with
information allowed by the SEC which will give tkbareholders the web address where a copy of they Btatement and related matel
may be found. Upon reaching such address, thelsblaler may read or print the documents and magr(afibmitting their account numbh
vote their shares.

Prior to the annual meeting, we expect to solfeit preferred shareholders to amend the variouéfiCaties of Designation to allow
purchases of stock ranking junior to the prefestdk while dividends are in arrears.
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The bylaws allow for uncertificated shares. If ahareholder is interested in holding their shameslectronic form only (which tt
Company does not recommend) you may initiate thatgss by contacting Mr. Douglas Cowan at the Compa

Mr. Thomas Shave Employment Agreement was amended in 2008 to saaieérse tax consequences to Mr. Shaw createddsag
of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. A sumyaf the existing terms of such agreement maydwad inltem 11 COMPENSATION
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance.
The following table sets forth information concexgpiour Directors, executives, and certain of ognificant employees as of the ¢

of this report. Our Board of Directors consistsadbtal of seven (7) members, two (2) membersti€tiware Class 1 Directors and five (5
which are Class 2 Directors which serve for tworyjteams.

Term as
Director
Name Age Position Expires
EXECUTIVES
Thomas J. Sha 58 Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer, at@s€ 2 Directo 2010
Douglas W. Cowan 65 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasugerd Class 2 2010
Director
Kathryn M. Duesmal 46 Executive Director, Global Heal N/A
Russell B. Kuhimai 55 Vice President, Sale N/A
Michele M. Larios 42 Vice President, General Counsel, and Secre N/A
Lawrence G. Salern 48 Director of Operation N/A
Steven R. Wisner 51 Executive Vice President, Engineering & Productima Class 2 2010
Director
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Marco Laterze 61 Class 1 Directo 2009
Amy Mack 41 Class 1 Directo 2009
Marwan Sake 53 Class 2 Directo 2010
Clarence Zierhu 80 Class 2 Directo 2010
SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES
Shayne Blythe 40 Director of Sales and Marketing Logisti N/A
John W. Fort lll 40 Director of Accounting N/A
James A. Hoove 61 Director of Quality Assuranc N/A
R. John Mada' 48 Production Manage N/A
Jules Millogo 48 Medical Director N/A
Judy Ni Zhu 50 Research and Development Mana N/A

Executives

Thomas J. Shaw, our Founder, has served as Chaiom#ve Board, President, Chief Executive Officand Director since o
inception. In addition to his duties overseeing Blanagement, he continues to lead our design tegmoduct development of other med
safety devices that utilize, among other things, umique patented friction ring technology. Mra&hhas over 25 years of experienc
industrial product design and has developed segetations to complicated mechanical engineerirgllehges. He has been granted mul
patents and has additional patents pending. Maw3kceived a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engiimagfrom the University of Arizona anc
Master of Science in Accounting from the UnivergiffNorth Texas.
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Douglas W. Cowan is a Vice President and our ChRiafncial Officer, Treasurer, and a Director. Kowan joined us as Ch
Financial Officer and was elected to the Board @k€iors in 1999. He is responsible for our finahcaccounting, risk management,
forecasting functions. Mr. Cowan has a BacheloBuosiness Administration from Texas Technologicall€ye. He is a CPA licensed
Texas.

Kathryn M. Duesman, RN, joined us in 1996 and autfyeserves as the Executive Director, Global HealShe provides clinic
expertise on existing products as well as thosgeielopment. She has been instrumental in devedapaining and marketing materials .
has spoken and been published on safety issuesDidsman works with international agencies to menthe use of safe technologie
developing countries. Ms. Duesman is a 1985 gitadofaTexas Woman'’s University with a Bachelor afe®ice in Nursing. Ms. Duesman’
clinical background as a registered nurse incluti@gnostic, acute, and home healthcare nursing.

Russell B. Kuhlman joined us in February 1997 andur Vice President, Sales. Mr. Kuhiman is resggea for management of t
sales force and liaison with GPOs and product itrgifior our sales organization, as well as distidou Mr. Kuhlmans efforts with us hay
resulted in bringing onboard Specialty Distributorsfluencing legislation, and educating influehtteealthcare representatives about
benefits of our product line. Mr. Kuhlman is resggel throughout the industry and is a main contdbto the safety effort in this counti
Mr. Kuhlman is also Vice President of Kuhlman & Kuoian, Inc, a nonpublic company. He has a salekgraand in the medical servi
industry that includes his most recent work for I@édical (formerly BioPlexus), a medical device manufacturing compargmfi994 t
1997, where he developed strategic marketing dtamsew safety products. Prior to his work thevie, Kuhiman worked as Director of Sa
and Marketing for Ryan Winfield Medical, Inc., a dieal device manufacturing company, from 1989 t8419vhere he launched several |
products, developed strategic sales territories, @was the trainer for Sales and Regional Managéfs. Kuhlman also worked for B
Vacutainer® Systems, a medical products company, in sevenadaiges from 1980 to 1989, where he was recognagdhe National Sal
Representative for the year 1987. Mr. Kuhiman s@dBachelor of Science in Finance from the Unitiertdf Tennessee.

Michele M. Larios joined us in February 1998 andrently serves as our Vice President, General Gearsd Secretary. Ms. Larios
responsible for our legal and legislative, quatissurance, human resource, and regulatory functibnaddition to working on legal matt
and with outside counsel, Ms. Larios works withiségtors on pertinent issues and relevant legatatiMs. Larios received a Bachelor of /
in Political Science from Saint Mary'College in Moraga, California, and a Juris Doaterfrom Pepperdine University School of Lav
Malibu, California.

Lawrence G. Salerno has been employed with us si8& and has served as Director of Operationsugosince 1998. He
responsible for the manufacture of all our produess well as all product development and procesgldpment projects. In addition,
supervises all aspects of the construction and restpa of our facilities in Little Elm, Texas. Mgalerno is the brother of Ms. Lillian
Salerno, a shareholder who ceased to be a 10%hsiidee in 2008. Mr. Salerno received his Bachelor of Science inrecoics from th
University of North Texas.

Steven R. Wisner joined us in October 1999 as Biex¥ice President, Engineering and Production an@ Director. Mr. Wisnes’
responsibilities include the management of engingeproduction, Chinese operations, and intermaficales. Mr. Wisner has over 30 y
of experience in product design, development, aadufacturing. Mr. Wisner holds a Bachelor of Sceeim Computer Engineering from lo
State University.

Independent Directors

Marco Laterza joined us as a Director effectiveoddMarch 22, 2005. Since 1988, Mr. Laterza has envand operated a put
accounting practice. His practice includes corfirpartnership and individual taxation, compilatieview of financial statements, finan
planning, business consulting, and trusts andesstaErom 2004 to the present Mr. Laterza hasssseed as the Chief Financial Officer for
Blue Software Corporation, a development stagevsoé company. Formerly, Mr. Laterza was employed number of positions from 1¢
to 1985 with El Paso Natural Gas Company eventaiying as its Director of Accounting. Mr. Latenzceived his
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Bachelors of Business Administration in Accountfngm Pace University in 1972. He is a CPA and teaeived a Certificate of Educatio
Achievement in Personal Financial Planning fromAlneerican Institute of CPAs.

Amy Mack joined us as a Director on November 19)720Since 2003, she has owned and operated SPA ®2dical spa. Sin
April of 2000, she has owned and operated (andesleag Chief Nursing Officer for) EmergiStaff & Assates, a nursing staffing company
Dallas, Texas. She served as a registered nuoseAugust 1997 to the date she began EmergiSta#ggociates. She obtained her Bact
of Science degree from Texas A&M University in @glé Station, Texas in 1991 and an Associate dégfgarsing from El Centro College
Dallas, Texas in 1994. She is a registered nar3exas.

Marwan Saker joined our Board of Directors in JAA60. Since 1983, Mr. Saker has served as Chieclive Officer ¢
Sovana, Inc., an export management company thatisaggricultural equipment and supplies to ovessmarkets. Since 2000, he has se
as Director of Consolidated Food Concepts Inc. &it@86, he has served as President of Internatiex@drts & Consulting Inc., an exp
management, consulting, and distribution compa8ince 2000, he has served as Vice President of dék@norp., an overseas sourt
company. From 1998 to 2001, he served as a Meofldy Investments, LLC, an equity investment compasince 1999, he has servel
President of Saker Investments Inc., a companyrtizatages an investment portfolio. Since 1998,dsederved as a General Partner of I
Investments, Ltd., an investment management limgtednership. He also serves as a Member of MMDAC, a real estate developm
company. He is also involved with Fig Land Develemt. Mr. Saker has acted as a representative).for companies seeking distributi
licensing, and franchising in the Middle East, Epgpand North Africa. Mr. Saker was instrumentabeveloping successful partnership
more than 15 countries. He offices in Irving, T&xa

Clarence Zierhut has served on our Board of Dimsctince April 1996. Mr. Zierhut founded an indigtdesign firm in 1955, Zierh
Design, now Origin Design, that develops new préslfiom concept through final prototypes. He cdasanagement of the company f
period of time but has since resumed his executitges. During his professional career, Mr. Zierhas created over 3,000 product design
more than 350 companies worldwide, in virtually mviéeld of manufacturing, and has won many intéioreal awards for design excellen:
His clients have included Johnson & Johnson, Abliadiuld, and McDonnell Douglas. He received a Bémhof Arts from Art Center Colley
of Design in Los Angeles, California.

Significant Employees

Shayne Blythe has been with us for over ten yeadsia our Director of Sales and Marketing LogisticShe is responsible 1
developing and implementing strategic directiorgectives, comprehensive sales and marketing p&rt programs. In addition, she dir
and oversees all aspects of the distribution poaad customer service policies in order to mordtat maintain customer satisfaction. Pric
joining us, Ms. Blythe assisted Mr. Shaw with thregimal 3cc syringe and other SBIR grant projedts. Blythe has a Bachelors of Busir
Administration in management from the American in&ional University.

John W. Fort Ill is our Director of Accounting. MFort joined us in March of 2000 as a Financiablst and has served as
Director of Accounting since October of 2002. ldrmary responsibilities include managing the degdy operations of the Accounting
Finance Department and coordination of the annudits, and interim reviews by our independent antants, as well as our cost accoun
and forecasting functions. Prior to joining us,deeved as the Manager of Financial Planning fergtoductmarketing department of Ex
Communications. Mr. Fort also served as the Manafj@udgeting and Projections for Snelling and limg, Inc., an international person
services firm. Mr. Fort holds a Bachelor of Bussédministration in Accounting from Tarleton Stateiversity.

James A. Hoover joined us in February 1996 anduisirector of Quality Assurance. Prior to his bedng Director of Qualit
Assurance he was Production Manager. He is reggerfer our quality assurance functions. Mr. Hephas also developed and impleme
FDA required procedures and has been involveddrFDA inspection process. Mr. Hoover joined usmaftorking for Sherwood for 26 yea
During his tenure with Sherwood, a medical devianufacturing company, he gained haodsexperience in all aspects of the medical dt
manufacturing process. Mr. Hoover began his carétbr Sherwood as a materials handler and workedualy up through a series of positi
with added responsibilities to his final positidtrete as Production Manager of

28



Table of Contents

Off-Line Molding, Operating Room/Critical Care. Inghiapacity, he managed several departments, ramasgroduct lines, and hired ¢
supervised over 200 employees. While at Sherwle@d|so gained experience with one of the counfitsssafety syringes, the Monojett

R. John Maday joined us in July 1999 and is ourdBection Manager. He is responsible for supervisiérthe production of ol
products. Prior to becoming Production Managedamuary 1, 2005, he served as our Production GeBepervisor. Mr. Maday has over
years of manufacturing experience in both classt Ill medical devices. He spent three years Wiémtor Corp. supervising two product
departments and 13 years with Sherwood in whiclydired handen experience in all aspects of medical device rfgnturing includin
managing the Kit and Packaging department with @25 employees. Mr. Maday/'formal training includes FDA and Total Que
Management Systems and he is certified as a BlattkoBSix Sigma Methodology.

Dr. Jules Millogo has served as our Medical Directimce May 2007. His duties include representisgat scientific forums al
working with the Ministries of Health and interraial organizations on developing injection safaty &aealth workers safety standards
policies. From 2004 to April 2007 Dr. Millogo wasmployed by John Snow, Inc. as the Project Direfdorthe Washingtomased Makin
Medical Injections Safer Project (“MMIS"g $150 million project funded by the U.S. governiterdecrease unsafe injections and the me
transmission of HIV/AIDS, and hepatitis B and C @t of the U.S. President Emergency Plan for AlREief (PEPFAR which we
administered by PATH). Under his leadership, th®lI8 Project trained more than 100,000 health warkarsafer injection practices ¢
donated more than 100 million safety syringes ghtillV prevalence countries in Africa and the Cheén. From 2001 to 2004 Dr. Millo
was a technical advisor for John Snow, Inc. Dildgb’s experience includes working in several Africad &sian countries under the Wc¢
Health Organization. Dr. Millogo holds a Mastef Science in Epidemiology of Communicable DissaBom the University College
London, UK, and a MD from the University of Ouagadou, Burkina Faso. Dr Millogo is fluent in Frendinglish, and several Afric
languages.

Judy Ni Zhu joined us in 1995 and is our Research@evelopment Manager. Her primary focus is on peoduct development a
improvement of current products. Prior to joiniig Ms. Zhu worked as a design engineer with Mavwshn the original 3cc syringe and of
SBIR grant projects. Ms. Zhu received her BacheloScience from Northwest Polytechnic University Xian, China, and her Master
Engineering from the University of Texas at Arlingt Ms. Zhu has assisted in design modificatiamgtfe 3cc syringe, which have maximi
both product reliability and production efficiencyshe also designed and developed a manual negséenbly machine and an autom
lubricating and capping system for the 3cc syriagd developed and assisted in the design of autahtddod collection tube holder assen
equipment. Ms. Zhu has collaborated with Ms. Dussiand Mr. Shaw in the filing of several patentligpions.

FAMILY RELATIONSHIPS

There are no family relationships among the ab@reqns except as set forth above.
DIRECTORSHIPS IN OTHER COMPANIES

No Directors hold directorships in reporting comigarother than as set forth above.
INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None of the above persons or any business in wdich person was an executive officer have beerhieddn a bankruptcy petitio
been subject to a criminal proceeding (excludimdfitr violations and other minor offenses), beehjact to any order enjoining or suspent
their involvement in any type of business, or biemd by a court or administrative body to havdatied a securities law.
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPRINCE

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires our Dinestexecutive officers, and persons who own moaa th0 percent of a registe

class of our equity securities to file with the SEial reports of beneficial ownership (Form 3jdareports of changes in beneficial owner
(Forms 4 and 5) of our Common Stock and our othjaitg
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securities. Officers, Directors, and greater th@rpercent shareholders are required by the SE€julations to furnish us with copies of
Section 16(a) reports they file.

Ms. Michele M. Larios, an executive officer, filadForm 5 on an untimely basis. The Form 5 adddessbona fide gift (her tw
children’s receipt of 500 shares each of Commogi§to

CODE OF ETHICS

Effective as of March 9, 2004, we adopted a codetbics that applies to all employees, includingg, ot limited to, our principal executi
and financial officers. Our Code of Business Cart@und Ethics is designed to deter wrongdoing anmtémote:

1. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethiaidiing of actual or apparent conflicts of inteselsetween personal &
professional relationships;

2. Full, fair, accurate, timely, and understandabkzldisure in reports and documents that we file wathsubmit to, the SE
and in our other public communications;

3. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, ruéesl regulations;
4. The prompt, internal reporting of violations of tb@de to an appropriate person or persons idethiifi¢he code; and
5. Accountability for adherence to the code.

We have posted a copy of the code on our websitevat.vanishpoint.com/investor.asp. Please follbe link to “Governancether
follow the link to “Charters”, then click on “RVPdgporate Code of ConductAny amendment to this code or waiver of its appiarato the
principal executive officer, principal financialfifer, principal accounting officer, or controller similar person shall be disclosed to inves
by means of a Form R-filing with the SEC. We will provide to any pens without charge, upon request, a copy of sucte afcthics. Suc
requests should be submitted in writing to Mr. Diasg/V. Cowan at 511 Lobo Lane, P.O. Box 9, LittlsmETexas 75068-0009.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

We have a separatetiesignated standing Audit Committee establishedcitordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the ExchaAgt
consisting of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut, Marco tzeand Marwan Saker. Each of the members oftidit Committee is independent
determined by the NYSE Alternext rules and Item)(@div) of Schedule 14A under the Exchange Act.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board of Directors has determined that we teveast one financial expert serving on the A@titnmittee. Mr. Marco Later
serves as our designated Audit Committee Finafoigert. Mr. Laterza is independent as it is defifer Audit Committee members by
listing standards of the NYSE Alternext.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Objectives of Our Compensation Plan
Our executive officer compensation program (therffpensation Program’is based on the belief that competitive compensat

essential to attract, retain, motivate, and rewagthly qualified and industrious executive officer®ur Compensation Program is intende
accomplish the following:
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attract and retain highly talented and productixecetive officers;

provide incentives and rewards for superior peréomoe by the executive officers; and

align the interests of executive officers with theerests of our stockholders.
What the Compensation Program Is Designed to Award

Our Compensation Program is designed to awarddgibrior long-term performance by our executivécefs and their loyalty.
Summary of Each Element of Compensation

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation amfig's Committee has approved an executive offioenpensation program tl
consists of four basic components:

base salary;

periodic short-term incentive compensation in thrrf of cash bonuses;

periodic long-term incentive compensation in therf@f stock options; and

medical, life, and benefit programs (which are galhe available on the same terms to all employees)
Why We Choose to Pay Each Element of Our Compensati Program
Base Salary

We choose to pay a significant component of our pemsation in base salary due to the fact that mané€ial performance
constrained by the monopolistic activities of Bie have been blocked from access to the markekxdlysive marketing practices engage
by BD who dominates the market. We believe thatribnopolistic business practices continue dedgitgaying $100 million to settle a pr
lawsuit with us in 2004 for anticompetitive praetic business disparagement, and tortious intederebntil such time as we believe that
have access to the market, we believe that it fscggiate to weigh our Compensation Program heanwiliavor of base salaries rather tha
incentive compensation.
Cash Bonuses

From time to time and when our cash reserves alliaking into account the continued need to competéhis monopolisti
environment and the continued need for significeash reserves) we grant cash bonuses in orderwardesignificant efforts or t
accomplishment of short-term goals. The last beswgere granted in 2003. The CEO has never beeregh any bonuses of any kind.
Long-Term Incentives: Stock Options

Longterm incentives are provided through grants of kstoptions primarily under our 2008 Stock Option rRlaThe grants a
designed to align the interests of executive officgith those of stockholders and to provide eadtetive officer with a significant incenti
to manage from the perspective of an owner witkguity stake in the Company.
How We Determine the Amount or Formula for Paymentin Light of Our Objectives

Executive compensation remains the same until tisesiereview of such compensation by the Compemsaind Benefits Committe

Compensation, other than that of the Chief Exeeu@fficer, has not been reviewed annually. Undterterms of Mr. Shaw’ employmer
agreement, his compensation is reviewed annually.
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In the past, when there is a review of executivamensation, we have retained an outside consuitimg Trinity Executive Recruiters, Inc.,
provide benchmarks for similar compensation giveas multiple and varied positions each executivéliulas well as our size and the hos
environment in which we operate.

Base Salary

The base salary for each of our executive officesibjectively determined primarily on the badishe following factors: experienc
individual performance, contribution to our perf@nte, level of responsibility, duties and functiogalary levels in effect for compara
positions within and without our industry, and imt&l base salary comparability considerations.

These base salaries are reviewed periodically andba adjusted based upon the factors discussbe jprevious sentence, as we
upon individual performance during the previougdisyear, changes in the duties, responsibilities fanctions of the executive officer, ¢
general changes in the compensation peer grougichwve compete for executive talent. The relatigght given to each of these factor
the Compensation and Benefits Committeeécommendation differs from individual to indival, as the Compensation and Ben
Committee deems appropriate.

Periodic Cash Bonuses

For 2008, we did not grant bonuses to our execubifficers. These bonuses, when paid, are paid @iseretionary basis,
determined by the Compensation and Benefits Coraaitt-actors considered by the Compensation andfiBeCommittee in determini
discretionary cash bonuses are personal performénad of responsibility, and many of the samedes considered by the Compensation
Benefits Committee and discussed above when ieweviand sets base salaries, except with a greatas fon the prior fiscal year. 1
Compensation and Benefits Committee also consimarseed to retain cash in deciding whether totgrash bonuses.

Long-Term Incentive: Stock Options

We have issued stock options to our employees fiora to time and may do so in the future. We ditlissue any stock options
2006 or 2007. We issued new options under the Z08k Option Plan to purchase an aggregate of6882shares of Common Stock
exchange for the cancellation of tendered optiamrsyant to an Exchange Offer. Options are geryegatinted to regular fulime employee
and officers. However, no options have ever beantgd to Thomas J. Shaw, the Company’s PresiagehC&O.

If stock options are to be issued, Management pespa proposal to the Compensation and Benefitsniittee. Considerations
Management in its initial proposal in determininguitable aggregate fair market value of optionsdaranted include our financial conditi
the number of options already outstanding, and#refit to the nomxecutive officer employees. The proposal includésmation relating t
the expected expense of such grants to be recahbizeis, the approximate number of options to badd, the number of options curre
outstanding, the employees to be included, the amofistock currently outstanding, and the methoden which the options would
awarded. If the proposal is approved by the Cormgigon and Benefits Committee, the proposal is gelyesubmitted to the Board
Directors. However, the committee can grant oggion its own initiative.

Once the dollar amount of options to be grantedgproved, Management begins determining the agtgegamber of shar
underlying options that can be granted under syghtcaal (based on the fair value of an option feg purchase of one underlying sha
Factors included in the determination of the valfian option grant for the purchase of one shaskide current market price of the Company’
stock, the proposed exercise price, the propospulation date, the volatility of the Compasystock, and the risk free rate. We may reta
independent outside consultant to determine sutdevan the past we have utilized the Blégholes model. Currently, we are using
binomial model, but we may use other methods irfuh&e as more appropriate methods are developed.

Options to executive officers are approved by tlen@Gensation and Benefits Committee and then thedBwoDirectors individuall
and without regard to a formula. However, the cdtte® can grant options on its own initiative.
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With regard to past grants, after the aggregatebeuraf shares underlying the options to be gramtesl determined, we allocated
options to our various departments based on tival compensation times their performance ratifige individual employes’ allocatiol
factor was the numerator of a fraction. The dematar was the departmestsum of all factors (annual compensation timesop@anct
ratings of all the eligible employees). The rasgltfraction was multiplied by the stock optionshie awarded to determine the emplogee’
individual portion of the aggregate approved optiorFuture grants may be based on the value ofibatibns to the Company and
necessarily pursuant to any formula.

The allocation was, from time to time, further ewed by each departmesntnanagement if they believed certain employees we
awarded an appropriate number of options, whichadament would consider.

Each stock option grant to employees allows theleyee to acquire shares of Common Stock at a fpeéek per share (never It
than the closing stock price of the Common Stockhendate of grant) for a fixed period (usually years). With regard to past grants, ¢
option generally became exercisable after threesyeantingent upon the employs&ontinued employment with us. The exceptiorpisons
issued to Officers and Directors pursuant to theharge Offer, which vested immediately for remployee Directors. Accordingly, gener:
stock option grants will provide a return to thepdoyee only if the employee remains employed bylusng the vesting period, and then ¢
if the market price of the underlying Common Stagipreciates. Future grants may vest over a shartenger period.

We offered to exchange certain outstanding eligiipigons for new options, on the terms and sulifetite conditions described in
Exchange Offer. The Exchange Offer expired at .00., Central Standard Time, on November 18, 2@®igjible participants (totaling 10
tendered, and we accepted for cancellation, eégifgitions to purchase an aggregate of 1,925,36®sled our Common Stock represen
99.4% of the total shares of Common Stock undeglyiptions eligible to exchange in the Exchange Off@e issued new options under
2008 Stock Option Plan to purchase an aggrega@62683 shares of Common Stock in exchange focdheellation of the tendered optio
The exercise price per share of each new optiomtegan the Offer was $1.30, which was $0.20 highan the last sales price of our Comi
Stock as reported by the NYSE Alternext on Novenit#r2008. Options issued to employees vest iny@mag. Options issued to non-
employee Directors vested immediately.

Allocation Between Long-Term/Current and Between Cah/Non-Cash Compensation

All of our long-term compensation consists of rash compensation in the form of stock options. W¥keve that the granting
stock options incentivizes executives to maximige longterm strengths as well as our stock price. Howevecause we are operating
monopolistic environment and our stock price htkelrelationship with our performance, the mogngicant component of compensatiol
base salary and not stock options. Managememicented to maximize shareholder value and will dgarded if they do so. Howevel
significant base salary enables us to retain tispetent Management despite the current inabdifyrovide valuable equity incentives.

How Determinations Are Made as to When Awards Are @anted

Generally, option awards are granted at the discretf the Board after recommendation of the Conspinon and Benefits Committ
or on the committee’s own initiative. No awards granted if the Compensation and Benefits Comendt#es not support a recommendation.

Unfortunately, our stock price does not always reacexpected to our achievements. Accordinglyiregs options have been grar
to aid in retaining competent and experienced ezl without regard to the then current stock ari¢iowever, such options always h
exercise prices that are at or above fair markietevan the date of grant.

In addition, there is no relationship between tla¢edof grant of options and our possession of ri@taonpublic information.

Furthermore, it is our policy with regard to optiotiat (although the options could be exerciseglutiderlying shares could not be sold intc
market while the executive was in possession of
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material nonpublic information under our insider trading policAccordingly, we believe that there is minimadkriof the executive profitir
from such material nonpublic information.

What Specific Items of Corporate Performance Are T&en into Account in Setting Compensation Policiesral Making Compensatior
Decisions

Cash reserves as well as trends in sales andarestaken into account when considering the adiligabf increasing base salaries
granting cash bonuses. At such times that anyede factors make it inadvisable to increase salami grant bonuses, then considerati
given to increasing option awards taking into actdbe value of prior option awards.

Awards are granted on the basis of historical parémce. Accordingly, there is no discretion toragthe awards once granted.

Factors We Consider in Determining to Change Compesation Materially

We consider our cash position, current liquidignigls, and the short-term and lalegm needs for cash reserves (especially in li§
the hostile environment in which we operate) whealating whether we can change compensation rafjeat a given time.

On an individual-by-individual basis, we also calesithe value of past option compensation, the editeness of that individua’
base salary, and their individual contribution tw goals.

How Amounts Realized from Past Compensation AffedDther Elements of Compensation

We are very aware that the vast majority of optigrented to our executives are significantly outh® money and that they n
remain so until we are able to obtain real acoedhd market. This is currently even true of théans issued pursuant to the Exchange (
which occurred in November 2008, which, among iteopurposes, was intended to rectify the fadtdpiions were underwater. According
future compensation will likely continue to be dmaied by base salary as well as periodic bonuses wbssible.
The Impact of the Accounting and Tax Treatments oDur Types of Compensation

Stock options granted to executives and other eyeplo are expensed for accounting purposes undeandiat Accounting Stande
(“FAS”) 123(R). We expense all of our option costs as wéeheé costs of salaries and bonuses. Accordingyjmpact of tax treatment
various compensation forms does not impact our evrsgtion decisions. Stock option expense is mogrEzed for tax purposes, except in
case of non-qualified stock options. For non-digalistock options, the intrinsic value of the optis recognized when the option is exercised.
Our Policy Regarding Hedging Stock Ownership

We prohibit certain stock transactions by employeses Directors, including:

1. Purchases and sales of stock witdix month period;
2. Short sales; and
3. Transactions in puts, calls, or otherivative securities.

Furthermore, employees and Directors are requagud-clear any hedging transactions.
Benchmarking of Our Compensation Program
In 2003, we hired Trinity Executive Recruiters,.Ifo assist us in providing benchmarks for compeémsaby similarly size

companies in similar industries for persons thdtl pwsitions which are currently fulfilled by vatie members of our executive team. TI
benchmarks support existing executive compensation.
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The Role of Our Executives and Directors in Deternming Compensation

Management establishes the initial recommendatiegarding compensation for all employees, includlmgmselves. Such propc
is then submitted to the Compensation and Ben€fitsimittee. In the event that a proposal is affatitée proposal is then recommende
the entire Board of Directors for a vote unlessabmmittee decides to act on its own initiative.

Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement

We have an Employment Agreement with Mr. ThomaShhw which was modified effective January 1, 20@&\oid adverse ti
consequences to Mr. Shaw created by the passagiee oAmerican Jobs Creation Act of 2004. No otheecetives (or Directors) a
compensated pursuant to employment agreements.

The new Employment Agreement with Mr. Shaw (the fHogment Agreement’provides for an initial period of three years wt
ends December 31, 2010 that automatically and mootisly renews for consecutive twear periods. The Employment Agreemer
terminable either by us or Mr. Shaw upon 30 daysttan notice or upon Shaw’s death.

The Employment Agreement provides for an annuargadf at least $416,399.88 with an annual salacyease equal to no less t
the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Ifi@#X”) over the prior year. The Employment Agmeent requires that Mr. Shasvsalar
be reviewed by the Compensation and Benefits Cotmenénnually, which shall make such increases@maiders appropriate.

Under the Employment Agreement, we are obligategréeide certain benefits, including, but not liedtto, participation in qualifie
pension plan and profit-sharing plans, participatio the Company Cafeteria Plan and other such insurance benafitgided to othe
executives, paid vacation, and sick leave. Weatse obligated to furnish him with a cellular télepe and suitable office space as we
reimburse him for any reasonable and necessargfquicket travel and entertainment expenses indusgehim in carrying out his duties &
responsibilities, membership dues to professiorgdmizations, and any business-related seminars@nfdrences.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, we are dielibto indemnify Mr. Shaw for all legal expensesurt costs, and all liabiliti¢
incurred in connection with any proceeding invotyimm by reason of his being an officer, employseagent of the Company. We are fur
obligated to pay reasonable attorney fees and eggeand court and other costs associated witheféisie in the event that, in Mr. Shavgol
judgment, he needs to retain counsel or otherwipered his personal funds for his defer

Upon his death, Shae’estate shall be entitled to his salary throughdate of death, applicable benefits, and reimipuese o
expenses.

We have the right to terminate the Employment Agreet if Mr. Shaw incurs a permanent disability dgrithe term of h
employment. A permanent disability shall mean MatShaw is unable to engage in any substantialfglaactivity by reason of any medica
determinable physical or mental impairment which ba expected to result in death or can be expeotéabt for a continuous period of
less than 12 months or is, by reason of any mdgidaterminable physical or mental impairment whien be expected to result in deat
can be expected to last for a continuous periatbdless than 12 months, receiving income replaceimenefits for a period of not less the
months under an accident and health plan covernngla®yees of the Company. Mr. Shaw shall also benwsl to be disabled if he
determined to be totally disabled by the Socialusigc Administration. In such event, Shaw is datitto his salary through the date
termination, reimbursement of expenses, and sébary period of 24 months as well as applicableefies

Shaw’s employment may be terminated for cause whiclefsed to be conviction of a felony which is maa#lyi detrimental to th
Company, proof, as determined finally by a courcompetent jurisdiction of the gross negligenceviiful misconduct which is material
detrimental to the company or proof, as determifiedlly by a court of competent jurisdiction of aelch of a fiduciary duty which
materially detrimental to the Company. In suchrgy@e shall be entitled to his salary throughdhge of termination plus reimbursemen
expenses.
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If Shaw is terminated without cause and not atirhigicit request, Shaw shall be entitled to hisasatthrough the date of terminati
reimbursement of expenses, his salary for 24 moaths/ell as applicable benefits.

If Shaw resigns (other than because of a changeritrol), he is entitled to his salary through dlage of termination, reimbursemen
expenses, salary for 90 days and applicable bsnefit

Mr. Shaw has the right under this agreement tagresi the event that there is a change in contPol'Change of Control”shall be
deemed to have occurred on either of the follovdates: (i) the date any one person (other tharSkaw), or more than one person acting
group, acquires (or has acquired during thentith period ending on the date of the most reeequisition by such person or pers«
ownership of stock of the Company possessing 36epéior more of the total possible voting powethaf stock of the Company (assuming
immediate conversion of all then outstanding cotibler preferred stock) or (ii) the date a majoritfy members of the Board of Director:
replaced during any 1&wonth period by Directors whose appointment or tedacis not endorsed by a majority of the membefrghe
Companys Board of Directors before the date of the appoémt or election. Shaw further has the right teige if there is a change
ownership. A change in ownership is defined toehaecurred on the date that any one person (diher$haw) or more than one person a
as a group acquires ownership of the Compmsyock that, together with the stock previouslidh®y such person or group constitutes r
than 50% of the total fair market value or totating power (assuming the immediate conversion bfha&in outstanding convertible prefer
stock) of the Company. In such event Shaw is ledtito salary through the date of termination, rsafar 24 months, reimbursement
expenses and applicable benefits.

Mr. Shaws commitment to the Company may not be construegragenting him from participating in other busises or fror
investing his personal assets as may require aotasor incidental time in the management, conseEmaand protection of such investme
provided such investments or businesses cannairistroed as being competitive or in conflict witle tusiness of the Company.

Mr. Shaw has agreed to a one-year nompete, not to hire or attempt to hire employeesohe year, and to not make known
customers or accounts or to call on or solicit accounts or customers in the event of terminatiohi® employment for one year unless
termination is without cause or pursuant to a ckasfgcontrol or ownership.

SUMMARY OF TOTAL COMPENSATION

The following Summary Compensation Table sets ftrehtotal compensation paid or accrued by us theprior three years to or
the account of the principal executive officer, gacipal financial officer, and the three highpaid additional executive officers:

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE FOR

Option All Other
Salary Awards ® Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year (%) (%) (%) $)
Thomas J. Shar 2006 400,000 — — 400,00(
President and CE! 2007 400,000 — 4,20(@ 404,20(
(principal executive officer 2008 416,548 — 4,60(@ 421,14¢
Douglas W. Cowal 2006 290,13C 58,37: — 348,50:
Vice President, CF( 2007 290,109 77¢€ 4,20(@ 295,08
(principal financial officer’ 2008 290,000 6,46( 4,60(@ 301,06(
Steven R. Wisne 2006 290,000 8,361 6,75(® 305,11°
Executive Vice Presider 2007 290,000 75¢ 4,20(@ 294,95¢
Engineering and Productic 2008 290,020 6,694 4,60(@ 301,31«
Michele M. Larios 2006 351,299 58,26¢ — 409,56¢
Vice President 2007 350,000 797 4,20(@ 354,99
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Option All Other
Salary Awards ® Compensation Total
Name and Principal Position Year (%) (%) (%) %
General Couns 2008 350,540 6,84: 4,60(@ 361,98:
Russell B. Kuhlmai 2006 132,593 36,61¢ — 169,20t
Vice President, Sale 2007 134,779 36¢ 2,69t 137,84:
2008 140,000 4,01¢ 2,80(@ 146,81
(1) The fair value of each option gramtsvestimated on the date of grant using the B&atieles option pricing model with the follow

weighted average assumptions used for grants id:2@0Ddividend yield; expected volatility of 37 pent; risk free interest rate of 4.89 perc
and an expected life of 9.0 years. No options vigsaed in 2005, 2006 or 20070ptions granted before 2008 were issued under 99€
Stock Option Plan, a copy of which Plan and amemdmere filed as exhibits to our Form 10-SB filaddune 23, 2000 and our Form K8B
filed on March 31, 2003, respectively.

The fair value of each 2008 option grant was edtchan the date of grant using the binomial oppdning model with the followin
weighted average assumptions used for grants i8:208 dividend yield; expected volatility of 67.%&rcent; risk free interest rate of 2
percent; and an expected life of 8.61 to 8.69 yea@te options were issued under the 2008 Stocio®ptlan, a copy of which Plan was filec
Appendix B to our definitive Schedule 14A filed Angust 19, 2008.

2) This amount was compensation purstaotir matching contributions to the 401(k) plan.
3) This amount constitutes the excessketaralue of the underlying shares of an exercgedk option over the exercise price.
GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

The following Grants of PlaBased Awards for 2008 Table sets forth informatiegarding grants of awards made under any pl
each named executive officer in the last complétadl year.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards for 2008

Estimated All Other
Future Option
Payouts Under Awards: Exercise
Equity Number of or base Grant date
Incentive Plan Shares of price of fair value
Awards Stocks or option of stock
Grant Target Units awards and option
Name Date #@ # $/share awards @
Thomas J. Sha
President and CE! — — — — —
(principal executive officer
Douglas W. Cowal 11/18/08 90,90¢ 11,09! 1.3C $77,752
Vice President, CF(
(principal financial officer
Steven R. Wisne 11/18/08 90,90¢ 9,791 1.3C $76,761
Executive Vice Presider
Engineering and Productic
Michele M. Larios 11/18/08 90,90¢ 6,141 1.3C $73,978

Vice President
General Counse
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Estimated All Other
Future Option Awards:
Payouts Under Exercise
Equity Number of or base Grant date
Incentive Plan Shares of price of fair value
Awards Stocks or option of stock
Grant Target Units awards and option
Name Date #@ # $/share awards
Russell B. Kuhimai 11/18/08 63,45( — 1.3C $48,366

Vice President, Sale

(1) These options were granted under the 2008 Stocik®ptan in exchange for other options pursuamutoExchange Offer.

(2) The fair value of the new options issued undetbBkehange Offer was determined utilizing the bindmiadel for pricing stock
options. The incremental value of the new optiowesr the tendered options was based on the diiferbatween the grant date fair
value of the new options and the fair value oftdreered options immediately before the exchafidge tendered options were val

using the binomial model. The incremental valuesesual to the following: $68,400 for Mr. Cowa4$417 for Mr. Wisner;
$64,639 for Ms. Larios; and $42,270 for Mr. Kuhlman

Narrative Disclosure to Summary Compensation Tabland Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

Please se€Compensation Pursuant to Employment Agreementand POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION O
CHANGE IN CONTROL in this Item 11 for terms of oonly employment agreement in effect.

There was not a rpricing of options or other award in the last fispear, but there was an exchange of options puatsosour Optio
Exchange Plan, whereby we offered to exchangeinestastanding eligible options for new options,the terms and subject to the conditi
described in the Exchange Offer. The exerciseepnias arbitrarily chosen as the higher of: 1)l#s sales price of our Common Stocl
reported on the NYSE Alternext on the date of graonhded to the next highest dime or 2) $1.30. dpt@ons were exchanged on a two for
basis. The new options effectively restarted dre ytear termination date, re-started a pear vesting period, reduced the number of sl
eligible for purchase by one half and reduced ttezase price to $1.30.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following Outstanding Equity Awards at FiscadafEnd Table sets forth information regarding unexsadioptions held by t
principal executive officer, the principal finank@dficer, and the three highest paid additionad@xive officers as of December 31, 2008.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2008 Fiscal Year Enc
Option Awards

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Number of Securities
Securities Underlying
Underlying Unexercised Option
Unexercised Unearned Exercise Option
Options Options Price Expiration
Name Unexercisable #HO (%) Date
Thomas J. Sha
President, CE( — — — —
(principal executive officer
Douglas W. Cowal 11,09: 90,90¢ 1.3C 11/18/18
Vice President, CF(
(principal financial officer
Steven R. Wisne 9,791 90,90¢ 1.3C 11/18/18
Executive Vice Presider
Engineering and Productic
Michele M. Larios 6,141 90,90¢ 1.3C 11/18/18
Vice President
General Counst
Russell B. Kuhlmai — 63,45( 1.3C 11/18/18

Vice President, Sale
1) These options will vest on November 18, 2@G3%uming the recipient is still employed by us.
PENSION BENEFITS

We do not have a pension plan other than the 4Qil#k) which is available to all employees the fogthe month after 90 days
service.

401(k) Plan

We implemented an employee savings and retiremiamt @ghe “401(k) Plan”) in 2005 that is intendedlde a taxgualified plai
covering substantially all employees. Under thiengeof the 401(k) Plan, employees may elect tordmrte up to 90% of their compensation
the statutory prescribed limit, if less. We may, car discretion, match employee contributions. Wade matching contributions
approximately $122,000 and $111,000 in 2008 and 2@¥spectively. There were no matching contridngiin 2006. $21,095 and $19,60
these matching contributions were to executiveceff in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN COTROL

The following table identifies the types and amesuait payments that shall be made to Mr. Thomas ShawCEO, in the event o
termination of his employment or a change in cdrper his Employment Agreement. Such payments sleamade by us and shall be one-
time, lump sum payments except as indicated below.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN C ONTROL
ASSUMING OCCURRENCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008Y

Salary Amounts
Through Owed Payment
Trigger Under Undiscounted Salary Equal to
Event Benefit Reimbursement For a Period of 24 90 Days’ Value of
Payment Triggering Event Date Plans® of Expenses Months Salary Payments®

Death X X X — — —



Disability
Termination With Caus
Termination Without Caus

Resignation (Other Than After
Change in Control

Resignation (After a Change
Control)

39

833,096

833,096

833,096

102,71C

833,096

833,096

102,71C

833,096



Table of Contents

@ The above payments would be paid uidie Shaw’s agreement at certain times. Any payments ariaging result of disability
resignation would be paid not sooner than six morghd one day from the termination date but nadrl#tan seven months from

termination date. Any payments arising as a resfulieath would be paid no later than the"@ay following the death. Payments arising
result of termination with cause or terminationhmitit cause would be paid not later thari"3@ay following the date of termination except
any amount due in excess of an amount equal téetiser of two times annual compensation or two gitte limit on compensation un
section 401(17) of the Internal Revenue Code o6188h amount in excess shall be paid no earlgr §ix months and one day after the
of termination but in no event later than seven themfter the date of termination.

(2) Mr. Shaw participates in our bengfans which do not discriminate in scope, termsmaration in favor of executive officers. S

plans are generally available to all salaried eyg#s. Accordingly, the value of such paymentsaoisincluded in the “Value of Payments”
column.

3) This value does not include paymemder our benefit plans for reasons set forth atrfote 2 above. In addition, this value asst
that the triggering event occurred on Decembe2808. Authorized payments under the Employmeneagrent are also capped to one d
less than the amount that would cause Mr. Shave tind recipient of a parachute payment under Se280G(b) of the Code.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

The following table identifies the types and amasuot compensation earned by our Directors (with ékeeption of those that ¢
named Executive Officers as described in footnaethe table) in the last Fiscal Year:

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE FOR 2008

Fees Earnec

or Paid in
Cash Option Awards All Other Total
Name® $) $@ Compensation ($) $)
Marco Laterze $3,50( — — $3,50(
Amy Mack $3,00( — $20,87 $23,87!
Marwan Sake $1,50( $30,78(® — $32,28(
Clarence Zierhu $3,50( $9,50(® — $13,00(
@ Messrs. Thomas J. Shaw, Douglas Wwag and Steven Wisner are Named Executive Offieéhe are also Directors. Th
compensation is reflected in the Summary Compersatid other tables presented earlier.
2 These options were issued in exchdog®lder stock options pursuant to the ExchandferO The incremental fair value of st

options as of the exchange date was $29,858 am®®8or Marwan Saker and Clarence Zierhut, respelgti After the exchange of optic
under this offer the aggregate number of optionrdevand awards outstanding for Messrs. Saker aewhdli as of December 31, 2008,
40,500 and 12,500, respectively. Such awards am#tbthe purchase of 40,500 an 12,500 shares ofn@m Stock for Messrs. Saker |
Zierhut, respectively.

3 The grant date fair value of thesgans is $0.76 for each option. Mr. Saker hasarsifor the purchase of 40,500 shares of Con
Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2008.

4 The grant date fair value of theséiams is $0.76 for each option. Mr. Zierhut hadiaps for the purchase of 12,500 share
Common Stock outstanding as of December 31, 2008.

(5) Ms. Mack’s company was paid thesafufor participating in clinical trials in 2008.
Narrative Explanation of Director Compensation Tablke for 2008
In 2008 we paid each namployee Director a fee of $500 per meeting anulvarsed travel expenses. In the past, we haveegtaa

each Director (except Mr. Shaw) stock options fomnon Stock. Mr. Laterza and
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Ms. Mack have also not yet been granted optiong. dé/not pay any additional amounts for committ@eigipation or special assignment.

Generally, employee Directors are compensated omtawill basis as discussed in the COMPENSATION DISCUE®$ AND
ANALYSIS. However, one employee, Mr. Thomas J.\8haur President and CEO, is compensated pursoazn £mployment agreeme
Please see thteompensation Pursuant to Employment Agreement set forth above for an in depth summary of tegeof such agreement.

The Compensation and Benefits Committee is cusrectimposed of Messrs. Clarence Zierhut and Marcerkza and Ms. Arr
Mack. Each of these members of this committeaisdependent Board member at the time of theirieeron the committee and none h
ever been employees.

There are no interlocking Directors or executivéicefs between us and any other company. Accolgiingpne of our executi
officers or Directors served as a Director or exigeuofficer for another entity one of whose exé@ges or Directors served on our Boart
Directors.

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation and Benefits Committee has revdieavel discussed the COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANASIS
required by Item 402(b) with Management, and, basedhe review and discussions referred to in pagayg (e)(5)(i))(A) of Item 402, h
recommended to the Board of Directors that the CEMBATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS be included in threport.

CLARENCE ZIERHU1
MARCO LATERZA
AMY MACK
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Mattest
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION
The following table sets forth information relatitggour equity compensation plans as of Decembge?®08:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
remaining available

for
future issuance under
Number of securities to Weighted average equity compensation
be issued upon exercis exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column(a))
Plan category (@) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder 1,286,96: $3.4(C 2,037,31
Equity compensation plans r
approved by security holde® 225,00( $6.9C —
Total 1,511,96: $3.92 2,037,31°
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We authorized the issuance of an individual opfitam for the purchase of 200,000 shares of Comntock30 Jimmie Shiu, M.D., fi
his past services in introducing us to purchaséngadous series of Preferred Stock as well asirfitnoducing us to Mr. Jack Jackson, v
controlled Katie Petroleum. The option is exergisat $6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

We authorized the issuance of an individual oppitan for the purchase of 25,000 shares of Commook3b Mr. Harry Watson fi
his past services in assisting us in protectingimigtiectual property. The option is exercisattlé6.90 per share and will terminate in 2012.

In connection with a Consulting Agreement with nigtional Export and Consulting, we issued an iitdial option plan for tt
purchase of 61,000 shares of Common Stock to MaSaker. The option was exercisable at $10.00 asuldvhave expired in 2010. T
option was exchanged for options issued under ®& Stock Option Plan which was approved by theedtwders.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
The following table sets forth certain informatigegarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 2, 2009, for et

person known by us to own beneficially 5 percentnare of the voting capital stock. Except pursuardapplicable community property la
each shareholder identified in the table possessess/oting and investment power with respect sodniher shares, except as noted below.

Amount and
Nature of
Name and Address o Beneficial Percent of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl )
Thomas J. Sha® 11,380,00 47.69°
511 Lobo Lane
P.O. Box 9
Little Elm, TX 7506(0009
Suzanne M. Augus? 2,800,001 11.79%%
5310 Buena Vista Drive
Frisco, TX 7503¢
Lillian E. Salernc® 2,243,501 9.4%
432 Edwards
Lewisville, TX 75067
Signia Capital Management, LL& 1,941,86. 8.1%
108 N. Washington St., Ste. 305
Spokane, Washington 992
Lloyd I. Miller, 11l ® 1,273,601 5.3%
4550 Gordon Drive
Naples, FL 3410:
Class B Stocl
Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Lillian E. Salernc 12,50( 1%
1) The percentages of Common Stock aseth on 23,892,564 shares of Common Stock equitsatensisting of 23,800,064 share

Common Stock outstanding and 92,500 shares of riPedfeStock convertible by the above persons wihndays of this report. T
percentages of Class B Stock are based on 2,285l286s of Class B Stock outstanding.
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2 80,000 of the shares identified asnBmn Stock are preferred shares which are eligdyleonversion into Common Stock within
days of this report. 2,800,000 of the shares aneed by Ms. Suzanne August (see footnote 3) butangrolled by Mr. Shaw, pursuant t
Voting Agreement. These shares are permanentlyrallmd by Mr. Shaw until such time as they aredsby Ms. August. These shares
included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s Common Stock igglents and percentages in the above table.

3) Ms. Auguss$ 2,800,000 shares are controlled by Mr. Thom&hdw, pursuant to a Voting Agreement. See foot@oker a mor
detailed explanation. Accordingly, they are alsolided in the Common Stock equivalents and peagesst for Thomas Shaw in the ab
table.

4) 12,500 of the shares identified asn@wn Stock are Class B preferred shares whichlgible for conversion into Common Stc
within 60 days of this report.

(5) The number of shares held by thistemtas obtained from a Schedule 13G/A filed onrgaby 13, 2009. Pursuant to the Sche
13G/A, Signia Capital Management, LLC has solengtpower for 512,122 of the shares and sole dispegpower for a total of 1,941,8
shares (inclusive of the sole voting power shares).

(6) The number of shares held by thistemtas obtained from a Schedule 13G filed on JanB8, 2009. Pursuant to the Schedule
Lloyd I. Miller has sole voting and dispositive pemfor 208,300 of the shares, and shared votingdespbsitive power for 1,065,300 shares.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain informatigggarding the beneficial ownership of our capitatk as of March 2, 2009, for et
Named Executive Officer (i.e., our CEO, CFO, ante¢hother highest paid officers) and Director o fiompany. Except pursuant
applicable community property laws or as otherwdégcussed below, each shareholder identified int#ide possesses sole voting
investment power with respect to his or her shares.

Amount and
Nature of
Name of Beneficial Percent of
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership Class®
Common Stocl
As a Groug Named Executive Officers and Directc 12,188,20 49.4%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha®@ 11,380,00 46.2%
Marwan Sake® 395,50( 1.6%
Clarence Zierhu® 22,50( <1%
Douglas W. Cowal® 102,00( <1%
Steven R. Wisne® 105,70( <1%
Russell B. Kuhimai®” 64,45( <1%
Michele M. Larios® 108,05( <1%
Marco Laterzz 10,00( <1%
Class B Stocl
As a Grouf Officers and Director 435,00( 19.0%
As Individuals Thomas J. Sha 80,00( 3.5%
Marwan Sake 355,00( 15.5%
Q) The percentages of Common Stock ased on 24,651,264 shares of Common Stock equigatensisting of 23,800,064 share

Common Stock outstanding; 435,000 shares of PegfeBtock convertible by the above persons and mpfior the purchase of 416,200 sh
of Common Stock obtainable by the above persong8iwi0 days of this report. The percentages o€k stock are based on 2,285
shares of Class B Stock outstanding.
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2 80,000 of the shares identified asnBmn Stock are preferred shares which are eligdyleonversion into Common Stock within
days of this report. 2,800,000 of the shares amar@on Stock shares owned by Ms. Suzanne Augustrbutamtrolled by Mr. Shaw, pursu.
to a Voting Agreement. These shares are permanemtitrolled by Mr. Shaw until such time as theg aold by Ms. August. These shares
included in calculating Mr. Shaw’s Common Stock igglents and percentages in the above table.

3) 355,000 shares identified as CommimeiSare preferred shares which are eligible farvension into Common Stock within 60 d
of this report. The shares are held as followake$ Investments holds 15,500 shares of Seriesl#gs®B Convertible Preferred Stock
25,000 shares of Series V Class B Convertible PetfeStock, Sovana Cayman Islands, Inc. holds 8@0ghares of Series IV Clas
Convertible Preferred Stock, and My Investmentsi®di4,500 shares of Series IV Class B ConvertibdéeRred Stock. Mr. Saker is an Offi
or Director and shareholder for each of these coega The remaining 40,500 shares identified asw@on Stock are shares obtain:
through the exercise of options held by Mr. Sakighiw 60 days of this report.

4) 12,500 of these shares identifie@€asimon Stock are shares acquirable by the exav€s®ck options within 60 days of this report.
(5) These shares identified as CommonkSaoe shares acquirable by the exercise of stptikres within 60 days of this report.

(6) 100,700 of these shares identifiedCasnmon Stock are shares acquirable by the exeofistéock options within 60 days of t
report.

(7) 63,450 of these shares identifie@€ammon Stock are shares acquirable by the exavEsteck options within 60 days of this report.
(8) 97,050 of these shares identifie€asmmon Stock are shares acquirable by the exerEseck options within 60 days of this report.

There are no arrangements, theadiper of which would result in a change in contoblthe Company, other than the fact
Ms. August’s shares shall cease to be controllembyShaw under their Voting Agreement upon thaledo a third party.

Item 13. Certain Relationships And Related Transadbns, and Director Independence

Related Party Transactions

We believe that all of the transactions set forloly were made on terms no less favorable to us ¢bald have been obtained fr
unaffiliated third parties. In accordance with durdit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee hegiewed and approved all related p
transactions. In particular, the Audit Committee reviews all poged transactions where the amount involved meetzaeeds $120,000.

Thomas J. Shaw, our President and Chief Executifiedd® who beneficially owned 35.7 percent of thetstanding Common Sto
(and controlled another 11.8 percent pursuant\oting Agreement with Ms. Suzanne August) as oy Ad, 2008, was paid a licensing fe:
$500,000 (amortized over 17 years) by us for theuskwe worldwide licensing rights to manufactunearket, sell, and distribute retracte
medical safety products. In addition, Mr. Shaw a&l August, together, receive an aggregate 5 perogalty on gross sales of all licen
products sold to customers over the life of thehhedogy Licensing Agreement. A royalty of $2,168%nd $1,471,046 was paid in 2008
2007, respectively. Royalties of $620,987 werel plaiough February 10, 2009.

We have an oral consulting agreement with MediTradernational Corporation, a company controlled My. Lillian Salerno,

shareholder who ceased to be a 10% sharehold@0®. 2t is paid $7,500 per month plus expenses2008 and 2007, it was paid aggre
consideration of $98,401 and $129,618, respectively
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Director Independence

The Board of Directors has the responsibility fetablishing corporate policies and for our ovepatformance, although it is r
involved in day-today operations. Currently, a majority (four of ey of the Directors serving on our Board of Dioestare independe
Directors as defined in Section 121(A) of the tigtistandards of the NYSE Alternext. Our curredeipendent Directors are Messrs. Clarn
Zierhut, Marwan Saker, and Marco Laterza, and MayAMack.

The Board of Directors, in reviewing the indeperzienf its members, further considered the fact Wepaid Ms. Maclks compan
$4,500 in 2007 and $20,875 in 2008 for conductifigical trials. The Board of Directors determingtht her independence was
compromised by such transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
AUDIT FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co. for profesaiservices rendered for the audit of our annimainicial statements for 2008 ¢
2007 and the reviews of the financial statemergkided in our Forms 1@ or services normally provided by the accountartdnnection wit
statutory and regulatory filings for those fiscabys were $195,700 and $174,583, respectively.
AUDIT RELATED FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co. for profesaicservices rendered for the audit of our 401{&hdor 2008 and 2007 we
$11,500 and $13,500, respectively.

TAX FEES

The aggregate fees billed by CF & Co. for preparatf federal and state income tax returns andd¢asulting costs related to noti
from taxing authorities for 2008 and 2007 were $20,and $149,291, respectively.

PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
The engagement of CF & Co. was entered into putdoathe approval policies and procedures of thditd@ommittee. Before CF
Co. was engaged to render services the engagenasrapproved by the Audit Committee. The engageisdnt audit and tax services wh
were detailed separately. The Audit Committee ennted its approval procedures, i.e., they wetel@legated to any other party. All of
services provided were pre-approved by the Audin@ittee.
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(@ (1) Allfinancial statements: See Retractable Techgiel Inc. Index to Financial Statements on Pe¢2.

(2) Those financial statement schedules required fiddzeby Item 8 of this form, and by paragraph ileJow. Schedule -Schedule ¢
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years esddecember 31, 2008, 2007, and 2(

Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Provision for Inventorie
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 111,29¢ $ — 8 61,29¢ $ 50,00(
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Balance at
beginning Balance at
of period Additions Deductions end of period
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 50,00 $ 155,600 $ — 3 205,60(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 205,60( $ — 3 — 3 205,60(
Provision for Accounts Receivabl
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 267,17: $ — 3 180,14« $ 87,03(
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 87,03( $ 166,97¢ $ — 8 254,00¢
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 254,00t $ 245,95¢ $ — 8 499,96t
Deferred Tax Valuatio
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 99,28( $ 541,14 $ — 8 640,42:
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 640,42. $ 3,026,500 $ — $ 3,666,93
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 366693 $ 2,36645 $ — $ 6,033,338
Provision for Rebate (A) (B)
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 2,44396/ $ 20,329,97 $ 20,061,188 $ 2,712,75
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 2,712,750 $ 1532984 $ 13,404,09 $ 4,638,49
Fiscal year ended 20( $ 463849 $ 1362525 $ 1439590 $  3,867,84
(A) Represents estimated rebates deducted from gnossues
(B) Represents rebates credited to the distrik
3) Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated herein by reference to exhibits previousddfwith the SEC

(b) Exhibits

Exhibit Description of Document

gl((i)). Third Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporatad RTI filed on November 1, 2004* as amended It tStatement
Change of Registered Office/Agent

3(ii) Third Amended and Restated Bylaws of RTI®

10.1 Sample United States Distribution Agreement*:

10.2 Sample Foreign Distribution Agreement**

10.3 Employment Agreement between RTI and Thomas J. Slaa&d as of January 1, 2008 (This is a managecoampensation
contract.) ***

10.4 Technology License Agreement between Thomas J. @haviRTI dated the Z¢ day of June 1995***

10.5 First Amendment to Technology License Agreementvbeh Thomas J. Shaw and RTI dated the 3rd daylyf2008t

10.6 Loan Agreement among RTI, Katie Petroleum and Thodn&haw as of the I day of September, 2002 and Promiss
Notett

10.7 RTI's 1999 Stock Option Plan***
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Exhibit Description of Document

No.

10.8 First Amendment to 1999 Stock Option Plan’

10.9 Retractable Technologies, Inc. 2008 Stock Opti@n®t 11

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourfingt

24 Power of Attorney

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officel

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certifications

* Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

** Incorporated herein by reference to 's Form 1+K filed on March 31, 200

*kk Incorporated herein by reference to s Form 1-Q filed on November 14, 20(

Fhkk Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Registration Statement on Forn-SB filed on June 23, 20(
T Filed herewitr

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to ’s Form K filed on October 10, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to ’'s Form 1-KSB filed on March 31, 200

Tt Incorporated herein by reference to 's definitive Schedule 14A filed on August 19, 2(
(c) Excluded Financial Statement Schedules: N
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC
(Registrant)

By: /sl Thomas J. Sha
THOMAS J. SHAW
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

Date: March 31, 200¢

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed béipwhe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

/s/ Steven R. Wisnhe

Steven R. Wisne

Executive Vice President, Engineering
Production and Directc

March 31, 200¢

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa

Douglas W. Cowal

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasuaard
Director

March 31, 200¢

/sl Clarence Zierht
Clarence Zierhu
Director

March 31, 200¢

/sl Amy Mack
Amy Mack
Director

March 31, 200¢

/s/ Marco Laterzi
Marco Laterze
Director

March 31, 200¢

*

Marwan Sake
Director

March 31, 200¢
* By: /s/ Marco Laterzi

Marco Laterze
Attorney-in-fact
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Exhibit 10.£

FIRST AMENDMENT TO
TECHNOLOGY LICENSE AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO TECHNOLOGY LICENSE AGREEMEN(this “First Amendment”) is made and entered iasoof
the 3rd day of July, 2008, by and betwd#tOMAS J. SHAW , a resident of the State of Texas (“Licensor”) RETRACTABLE
TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Texas corporation (“Licensee”).

RECITALS:

A. Licensor and Licensee have heretofore enteredfatocertain Technology License Agreement dateaf dsne 23, 1995, a
copy of which is attached hereto as ExhiBit (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which Licensor agréegrant Licensee an exclusive license to
manufacture, market, sell, distribute and othergiggloit certain retractable syringe technologyered by certain patents and patent
applications owned by Licensor.

B. Licensor and Licensee desire to amend the Agreemamtier to include certain additional patent &gilons owned by
Licensor to the definition of “Patent Properties’ set forth in the Agreement so that such additipatent applications would be covered by
license granted by Licensor to Licensee pursuatitecdAgreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premised ie mutual agreements herein set forth, thegsatéreby agree as follows:

1. New Item 3 of Section One The existing item 3 of Section One of the Agreatrentitled “Subject Matteri$ hereby delete
in its entirety and the following new item 3 is @By inserted in the Agreement:

3. The subject matter of this Agreement includes fallicensor’s patents and patent applications oracéhble syringe
technology, both domestic and foreign, including eantinuations, divisions, and reissues thereofyell as all foreign counterpart
patent applications that can be filed and improvemthereof. This Agreement specifically includles following “Patent Properties”
which are set forth below:

U.S. Patent 5,120,310, Issued June 9, 1992, ehtilenreusable Syringe;”

U.S. Patent 5,188,613, Issued February 23, 199Beelnf‘Nonreusable Syringe with Safety Clip;”

U.S. Patent 5,267,961, Issued December 7, 1998edritNonreusable Syringe with Safety Clip;”
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Foreign Counterpart Patent Applications on the Masable Syringe with Safety Clip corresponding 18.Watents 5,120,3
and 5,188,613 for Europe (Serial No. 92910361.2)n& (Serial No. 92102245.X), India (Serial No. ABAL/92), Mexico
(Serial No. 92-01493), and Taiwan (Serial No. 8281,

U.S. Patent 5,423,758, Issued June 13, 1995,axht®etractable Fluid Collection Devise” and a Cteupart Patent
Cooperation Treaty Application Serial No. 94/139&8titled “Blood Sampler,” Filed December 6, 19%$idnating all PCT
countries;

U.S. Patent 5,385,551, Issued January 31, 1998 edrifNonreusable Syringe with Front Retractiomitaa Counterpart
Patent Cooperation Treaty Application Serial NOTRIS94/10235, Filed September 7, 1994 designalif@@r countries;

U.S. Patent 5,389,076, Issued February 14, 1998leen'Single Use Medical Device with Retractiorelbhanism” and a
Countc_arpart Patent Cooperation Treaty Applicatierigd No. PCT/US95/03953, Filed March 31, 1995 gleating all PCT
countries;

U.S. Patent 5,637,092, Issued June 10, 1997,axhtiBlyringe Plunger Locking Assembly;”

U.S. Patent 5,578,011, Issued November 26, 199#leeli Tamperproof Retractable Syringe;”

U.S. Patent 5,810,775, Issued September 22, 1888ed “Cap Operated Retractable Medical Device;”

U.S. Patent 6,872,193, Issued March 29, 2005 |emtity Catheter Introducer with Retractable Negtle

U.S. Patent 6,494,863, Issued December 17, 20@iledrfOne-Use Retracting Syringe with Positiveddée Retention;”
U.S. Patent 5,817,058, Issued October 6, 1998/eshtRetractable Catheter Introducer Structure;”

U.S. Patent 5,997,512, Issued December 7, 1998@edriRetractable Dental Syringe;”

U.S. Patent 6,221,055, Issued April 24, 2001, ledtitRetractable Dental Syringe;”
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U.S. Patent 7,351,224, Issued April 1, 2008, exttitRetractable Syringe Assembly Designed for Ose;U

U.S. Patent 6,572,584, Issued June 3, 2003, ehtfetractable Syringe with Reduced Retraction Egrc

U.S. Patent 6,474,472, Issued November 4, 200RleehtSafety Sharps Bagging Apparatus;”

U.S. Patent 5,989,220, Issued November 23, 19%98leenSelf-Retracting IV Catheter Introducer;”

U.S. Patent 6,090,077, Issued July 18, 2000, edtitbyringe Plunger Handle Assembly and Barrel;”

U.S. Patent 5,632,733, Issued May 27, 1997, edtilamperproof Retractable Syringe;”

U.S. Patent 5,779,679, Issued July 14, 1998, edtitVinged IV Catheter;”

U.S. Patent 6,210,371, Issued April 3, 2001, exttitWinged 1V Set;”

U.S. Patent 6,015,438, Issued January 18, 200@ledrit-ull Displacement Retractable Syringe;”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 12/059,63%diMarch 31, 2008, entitled “Medical Device withtRetable Needle;”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 10/969,12&dilOctober 18, 2004, entitled “Fixed Dose Syringth Wimited
Aspiration;”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 11/042,94%kdilDanuary 25, 2005, entitled “IV Catheter Intraetueith Retractable
Needle;”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 11/743,70&dibn May 3, 2007, entitled “Syringe with RecesNede for Use with
Frontal Attachments;”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 12/030,63&dibn February 13, 2008, entitled “Syringe with &=ed Nose and
Protective Guard for Use with Frontal Attachments,”

U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 12/167,343dibn July 3, 2008, entitled “Cleaning Tool forathment Surfaces;” and
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U.S. Patent Application, Serial No. 12/136,462dibn June 10, 2008, entitled “Fluid Flow ContreMZe with Retractable
Cannula.”

These patents and patent applications and thetddhé additional foreign regional and nationalioiterpart applications are
collectively referred to herein as “Patent Progetti

2. No Other Amendment; Definitions Except as specifically modified and amendedymmsto Section 1 hereof, the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effecthwitit revision thereto. Moreover, all capitalizedhts used in this First Amendment, unless
otherwise defined herein or the context specifjcpibvides otherwise, shall have the same mearhiagsn as attributed to such terms in the
Agreement.

3. Binding Effect. This First Amendment shall be binding upon ande to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns or, as appeyhréts and legal representatives.

4, Applicable Law. THIS FIRST AMENDMENT, AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATION S OF THE PARTIES
HERETO, SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCOR DANCE WITH THE SUBSTANTIVE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF TEXAS, WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLI CTS OF LAW PRINCIPLES THEREOF.

5. Jurisdiction and Venue Any judicial proceedings brought by or againsg party on any dispute arising out of this First
Amendment or any matter related thereto shall badint in the state or federal courts of Dallas Gpufexas, and, by execution and delivery
of this First Amendment each of the parties acclptself the exclusive jurisdiction and venuetioé aforesaid courts as trial courts, and
irrevocably agrees to be bound by any judgmentemuithereby in connection with this First Amendtrafter exhaustion of all appeals taken
(or by the appropriate appellate court if such #ppeecourt renders judgment).

6. Descriptive Headings; Language Interpretatiohhe descriptive headings of this First Amendnsestinserted for
convenience only and do not constitute a partisfRirst Amendment. In the interpretation of tRisst Amendment, unless the context
otherwise requires, (a) words importing the singaleall be deemed to import the plural and vicesage(b) words denoting gender shall include
all genders, and (c) references to parties, astigections, schedules, paragraphs and exhibitavséan the parties, articles, sections, schec
paragraphs and exhibits of and to this First Amegmim

7. Integration. This First Amendment contains the entire un@eding of the parties with respect to the subjeaiten hereof.
There are no restrictions, agreements, promispgggentations, warranties, covenants or undertakiriip respect to the subject matter hereof
other than those expressly set forth or referrduetein. This First Amendment supersedes all @ipeements and understandings between th
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.




8. Counterparts This First Amendment may be executed in two orercounterparts, each of which shall be deemed an

original, but all of which shall constitute one ahé same instrument, and it shall not be necessanaking proof of this First Amendment to
produce or account for more than one such counterpa

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executedRirst Amendment as of the date set forth above.

LICENSOR: By: s/ Thomas J. Sha

Thomas J. Shaw, individual

LICENSEE: RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: s/ Steven R. Wisne
Printed Name: Steven R. Wisr
Title: Executive Vice Preside




Exhibit 2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRlegistration Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15587d 333-1300419f Retractabl
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated March 310@€elating to our audit of the financial statenseand financial statement schedule, w
appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Ratthle Technologies, Inc. for the year ended Decer®@bg2008.

/s/ CF & Co., L.L.P
CF & Co., L.L.P.

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2009



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersignéirector of RETRACTABLE TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Ta=
corporation (the “Corporation”), does hereby makenstitute, and appoint MARCO LATERZA and each or any one of them,
undersigned’s true and lawful attorneys-in-factthwfull power of substitution, for the undersignadd in the undersignezsi'name, place a
stead, to sign and affix the undersigned’s nameirastor of the Corporation to the Form KOfor the year ended December 31, 2008, al
file the same, including any and all exhibits, shiies, supplements, certifications, supporting doents, and amendments thereto.

The undersigned also grants to said attorneyadh-and each of them, full power and authoritydtoand perform any and all a
necessary or incidental to the performance andutiecof the powers herein expressly granted, herabfying and confirming all that se
attorneys-infact may lawfully do or cause to be done by vitieeeof. This Power of Attorney shall remain ineeffuntil revoked in writing t
the undersigned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdRbwer of Attorney effective as of March 24, 2009
s/ Marwan Sake

Marwan Sake
Director




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

[, Thomas J. Shaw, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnftate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, teequas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contnedr financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvemanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 20C

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

[, Douglas W. Cowan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRetractable Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnftate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations, aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, teequas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifide establishing and maintaining disclosure cdstrand procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and praesd or caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our supervi
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within tt
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and thgreparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgisteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registranthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrg that has materially affected, or is reasondikkly to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosédsed on our most recent evaluation of internaltrob over financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing theiveden:
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal contnedr financial reporting which
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize, and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalvemanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarst’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 31, 20C

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Solely in connection with the filing of the Annu&kport of Retractable Technologies, Inc. (the “Canyj) on Form 1K for the period ende
December 31, 2008, as filed with the United St&esurities and Exchange Commission on the dateohéifee “Report”),the undersigne
Thomas J. Shaw, Chief Executive Officer, and Dosigldl. Cowan, Chief Financial Officer, do hereby iégrtpursuant to 18 U.S.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the financ@ldition and results of operations of
Company.

Date: March 31, 20C

/s/ Thomas J. Sha

THOMAS J. SHAW
PRESIDENT, CHAIRMAN, AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICEF

/s/ Douglas W. Cowa
DOUGLAS W. COWAN
VICE PRESIDENT AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER




